

For the Three and Nine Months Ended May 31, 2020 (unaudited)





Table of Contents

3	Financial Highlights
4	Highlights in the Quarter
5	Highlights Subsequent to the Quarter
6	Management's Discussion and Analysis
7	Overview of Consolidated Results
10	Television
11	Radio
12	Corporate
12	Quarterly Consolidated Financial Information
14	Financial Position
15	Liquidity and Capital Resources
17	Key Performance Indicators
18	Risks and Uncertainties
20	Impact of New Accounting Policies
21	Controls and Procedures
22	Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes
	Company of the state of the sta



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(These highlights are derived from the unaudited consolidated financial statements)

	Three m	onths ended	Nine months ended			
(in thousands of Canadian dollars except per share amounts)		May 31,		May 31,		
	2020	2019	2020	2019		
Revenues						
Television	331,322	421,481	1,109,116	1,201,137		
Radio	17,645	36,936	83,724	108,866		
	348,967	458,417	1,192,840	1,310,003		
Segment profit (1)(2)						
Television	115,838	166,650	409,928	464,912		
Radio	(1,776)	9,768	14,828	27,735		
Corporate	(2,749)	(5,895)	(13,419)	(17,338)		
	111,313	170,523	411,337	475,309		
Net income (loss) attributable to shareholders	(752,280)	66,378	(655,640)	133,137		
Adjusted net income attributable to shareholders (1)	18,996	66,077	124,876	153,077		
Basic earnings (loss) per share	(\$3.61)	\$0.31	(\$3.12)	\$0.63		
	., .	·	., .			
Adjusted basic earnings per share (1)	\$0.09	\$0.31	\$0.59	\$0.72		
Diluted earnings (loss) per share	(\$3.61)	\$0.31	(\$3.12)	\$0.63		
Free cash flow (1) (2)	90,773	90,101	208,894	216,416		

⁽¹⁾ Segment profit, adjusted net income attributable to shareholders, adjusted basic earnings per share, and free cash flow do not have standardized meanings prescribed by International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"). The Company believes these non-IFRS measures are frequently used as key measures to evaluate performance. For definitions, explanations and reconciliations see discussion under the Key Performance Indicators section of this report.



⁽²⁾ Segment profit (loss) for the three and nine months ended May 31, 2020 was impacted by the adoption of the new accounting standard, IFRS 16 - Leases, effective September 1, 2019. This has resulted in an increase in segment profit for the quarter and year-to-date of approximately \$3.3 million and \$10.1 million, respectively, and an increase in free cash flow of approximately \$4.1 million and \$12.1 million, respectively. Further discussion of this can be found in the Impact of New Accounting Policies section of this report.

HIGHLIGHTS IN THE QUARTER

- On March 2, 2020, the Company unveiled its new Global TV App an all-in-one streaming experience delivering Canadians a first-of-its-kind TV product with access to many of the Company's top networks and shows, live and on demand, for networks included in customers cable subscriptions. The new platform is the first streaming product to provide Canadians with free, 24/7 access to local and national news feeds from Global News. On April 6, 2020, Corus announced the addition of two additional networks to the Global TV App, which is newly available on Amazon Fire TV and Roku® streaming devices.
- On March 3, 2020, the Company announced the appointment of three new independent board members to its Board of Directors. Joining the Board are Alex Carloss, Stephanie Coyles and Sameer Deen. These appointments bring Corus' total board membership to 12 and increased the diversity of the Board.
- On March 31, 2020, the Company paid a quarterly dividend of \$0.05875 and \$0.06 per share to holders of its Class A and Class B Shares, respectively.
- On April 9, 2020, the Company announced the launch of #CanadaTogether, a national initiative to help inspire, educate and engage Canadians during the COVID-19 pandemic.
- On April 24, 2020, the Company announced the launch of Global News Weekend, a new morning show co-hosted by Aalia Adam and Mike Arsenault. The new program, created for audiences tuning into Global News digital platforms, including the Global TV App and globalnews.ca, provides a mix of news, weather and in-depth interviews.
- On April 27, 2020, the Company, along with other top Canadian broadcasters, raised more than \$8 million in support of Food Banks Canada during the COVID-19 pandemic following the historic all-Canadian special, STRONGER TOGETHER, TOUS ENSEMBLE, a national salute to frontline workers. The biggest multi-platform broadcast ever is now the most-watched (non-sports) Canadian broadcast on record, reaching 11.5 million viewers and hundreds of thousands of others on radio and digital platforms.
- On April 27, 2020, the Company's ET Canada, along with the CCMA Foundation™, announced that it's collaborative, week-long broadcasting event — Canada Together: In Concert Presented by TD — raised more than \$300,000 for Food Banks Canada and the Unison Benevolent Fund.
- On May 7, 2020, the Company's Corus Studios announced the sale of original hit series Island of Bryan Season 1 and Season 2 to Discovery, Inc.'s HGTV. The series will be newly titled Renovation Island for the U.S. market.
- On May 12, 2020, the Company's Global News was recognized with five major journalism awards at the 2020 Radio Television Digital News Association (RTDNA) Regional Murrow Awards in the International Region competition, including Large Market Television: Overall Excellence for Global News BC; Large Market: Hard News for Global BC's Alaska float plane crash; Large Market Television: News Series for Global News Alberta's Walking with Pride; Large Market Television: Podcast for Global News Alberta and Curiouscast's Crime Beat - Kelly Cook: The Back-up Babysitter; and Small Market Television: News Documentary Still Searching: The Disappearance of Mekayla Bali.
- From May 24 to 28, 2020, the Company's programming, original productions and content received a total of nine Canadian Screen Awards (CSA), including Best Local Report for Global News Hour at 6's Rumina Daya; Best Direction, Drama Series for Global's Mary Kills People; and Golden Screen Award for TV Drama or Comedy for Global's Private Eves.
- On May 30, 2020, the Company's Global News, along with other top media organizations, was recognized with the Canadian Association of Journalists (CAJ) Award for Data Journalism for its work on Tainted Water, a nationwide investigation that exposed the prevalence of lead contamination in drinking water. In total, more than 120 reporters were involved in the project, which was published and broadcast during the fall, and sparked immediate action from government leaders.
- During the third quarter of fiscal 2020, the Company performed impairment testing of intangible assets for accounting purposes, resulting in broadcast license and goodwill impairment charges of \$786.8 million. The impairment charges are non-cash items and adjust the carrying values at May 31, 2020 to estimated current market values.



HIGHLIGHTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE QUARTER

- On June 4, 2020, the Company expanded 13 of its top-tier linear television brands onto VMedia's newly launched RiverTV, the first Canadian-owned virtual broadcasting distribution undertaking (vBDU). Corus' networks are included in RiverTV's bundle of over 30 channels, offering live and on-demand content
- On June 9, 2020, the Company declared a quarterly dividend of \$0.05875 and \$0.06 per share to holders of its Class A and Class B Shares, respectively, with a record date of June 16, 2020 and a payment date of June 30, 2020.
- On June 22, 2020, the Company was selected as a Canadian constituent in the LGBT Corporate Canadian Index ("LGBT CCI"), a benchmark for understanding and measuring LGBT Diversity and Inclusion within corporate
- On June 22, 2020, the Company announced a collaboration with Playwire, a revenue amplification company in verticals including e-sports, gaming, kids education and entertainment. The new offering in Canada delivers advertisers premium inventory online, in-game and across connected TV devices.
- On June 22, 2020, Global Television announced the addition of Emmy®Award-winning newsmagazines 60 Minutes and 48 Hours to its network beginning this fall.
- On June 23, 2020, the Company announced an agreement with NBCUniversal to air marquee Peacock Original programming in Canada. The exclusive deal includes a selection of original scripted and unscripted content, along with movies and specials, produced for Peacock and airing across Corus networks and platforms, with full linear and on-demand stacking rights
- On June 23, 2020, Global Television unveiled its 2020/2021 programming slate featuring new series The Equalizer and neXt, along with 19 returning primetime hit shows including New Amsterdam, Evil and Survivor, as well as Global Original event series Departure.
- On June 23, 2020, the Company announced its content slate for the 2020/2021 broadcast year across its collection of premium specialty networks, including 43 new and returning Canadian Original series and movies. Corus' specialty programming offerings include the return of Outlander and The Good Fight on W Network, Batwoman and Absentia on Showcase, Vikings and The Curse of Oak Island on History, Scott's Vacation House Rules and Property Brothers: Forever Home on HGTV Canada, and new series Chopped: Beat the Judge on Food Network Canada. This year, Corus Studios will introduce 20 new and returning series including Cheese: A Love Story, Family Home Overhaul, Island of Bryan, Rust Valley Restorers and Great Chocolate Showdown. The Company's Nelvana subsidiary announced seven new and returning series including The Hardy Boys, Esme & Roy, Miss Persona and Ranger Rob.



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Management's Discussion and Analysis of the financial position and results of operations for the three and nine months ended May 31, 2020 is prepared as at June 25, 2020. The following should be read in conjunction with Management's Discussion and Analysis, consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto included in the Company's August 31, 2019 Annual Report and the interim condensed consolidated financial statements and notes of the current quarter. The financial highlights included in the discussion of the segmented results are derived from the unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements. All amounts are stated in Canadian dollars unless specified otherwise.

Corus Entertainment Inc. ("Corus" or the "Company") reports its financial results under IFRS in Canadian dollars. Per share amounts are calculated using the weighted average number of shares outstanding for the applicable period.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

This document contains forward-looking information and should be read subject to the following cautionary language:

To the extent any statements made in this report contain information that is not historical, these statements are forward-looking statements and may be forward-looking information within the meaning of applicable securities laws (collectively, "forward-looking information"). These forward-looking statements relate to, among other things, our objectives, goals, strategies, intentions, plans, estimates and outlook, including advertising, distribution, merchandise and subscription revenues, operating costs and tariffs, taxes and fees, and can generally be identified by the use of words such as "believe", "anticipate", "expect", "intend", "plan", "will", "may" and other similar expressions. In addition, any statements that refer to expectations, projections or other characterizations of future events or circumstances may be considered forward-looking information. Although Corus believes that the expectations reflected in such forward-looking information are reasonable, such information involves assumptions and risks and uncertainties and undue reliance should not be placed on such statements. Certain material factors or assumptions are applied with respect to the forward-looking information, including without limitation: factors and assumptions regarding the general market conditions and general outlook for the industry, interest rates, stability of the advertising, distribution, merchandise and subscription markets, operating and capital costs and tariffs, taxes and fees, our ability to source desirable content and our capital and operating results being consistent with our expectations. Actual results may differ materially from those expressed or implied in such information. Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from these expectations include, among other things: our ability to attract and retain advertising revenues; audience acceptance of our television programs and cable networks; our ability to recoup production costs, the availability of tax credits and the existence of co-production treaties; our ability to compete in any of the industries in which we do business; the opportunities (or lack thereof) that may be presented to and pursued by us; conditions in the entertainment, information and communications industries and technological developments therein; changes in laws or regulations or the interpretation or application of those laws and regulations; our ability to integrate and realize anticipated benefits from our acquisitions and to effectively manage our growth; our ability to successfully defend ourselves against litigation matters arising out of the ordinary course of business: failure to meet covenants under our senior credit facility; epidemics, pandemics or other public health crises, including the current outbreak of novel coronavirus ("COVID-19") and changes in accounting standards. Additional information about these factors and about the material assumptions underlying any forward-looking information may be found under the heading "Risks and Uncertainties" in the Management's Discussion and Analysis for the year ended August 31, 2019 and this document and under the heading "Risk Factors" in our Annual Information Form. Corus cautions that the foregoing list of important assumptions and factors that may affect future results is not exhaustive. When relying on our forward-looking information to make decisions with respect to Corus, investors and others should carefully consider the foregoing factors and other uncertainties and potential events. Unless otherwise specified, all forward-looking information in this document speaks as of the date of this document. Unless otherwise required by applicable securities laws, Corus disclaims any intention or obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking information whether as a result of new information, events or circumstances that arise after the date thereof or otherwise.

For a discussion on the Company's results of operations for fiscal 2019, we refer you to the Company's Annual Report for the year ended August 31, 2019, filed on SEDAR on December 10, 2019.



OVERVIEW OF CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Consolidated results for the three and nine months ended May 31, 2019 reflect the impact of the sale of the Telelatino Network ("TLN") on March 22, 2019.

REVENUES

Consolidated revenues for the third quarter of fiscal 2020 of \$349.0 million decreased 24% from \$458.4 million in the prior year. On a consolidated basis, advertising revenues declined 34% and merchandising, distribution and other revenues were down 15% compared to the prior year, while subscriber revenues were consistent with the prior year. Revenues were down 21% in Television and decreased in Radio by 52%, compared to the prior year.

For the nine months ended May 31, 2020, consolidated revenues of \$1,192.8 million decreased 9% from \$1,310.0 million in the prior year. On a consolidated basis, advertising revenues decreased 14% and subscriber revenues decreased 1%, while merchandising, distribution and other revenues increased by 11% from the prior year. Revenues decreased 8% in Television and 23% in Radio compared to the prior year. Further analysis of revenues is provided in the discussion of segmented results.

DIRECT COST OF SALES, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Direct cost of sales, general and administrative expenses for the third quarter of fiscal 2020 of \$237.7 million decreased 17% from \$287.9 million in the prior year. On a consolidated basis, direct cost of sales decreased 9%, employee costs decreased 31% and general and administrative expenses decreased 22% from the prior year. The decrease in direct cost of sales arises from decreases in amortization of program rights and film assets in the quarter. The decrease in employee costs was primarily due to estimated Canadian Emergency Wage Subsidy ("CEWS") funding, lower short-term compensation accruals, reduced share-based compensation expense and lower commission costs. General and administrative expenses were lower as a result of curtailed discretionary costs such as travel, entertainment, advertising and marketing, reductions in rent expenses as a result of the implementation of IFRS 16 - Leases as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") that reduced rent expenses charged through operating costs (refer to Impact of New Accounting Policies section of this report for further details), as well as relief on Part 1 Canadian Radio-television and Telecommunications Commission ("CRTC") fees. General and administrative expenses were also positively impacted by lower trade mark and transmission fees from the shut down of the Cosmo and IFC channels on September 30, 2019 and the FYI channel on December 31, 2019, and tariff royalties that are positively correlated with revenues, partially offset by increases over prior year in estimated credit losses, consulting fees and to a lesser extent incremental COVID-19 related costs.

For the nine months ended May 31, 2020, direct cost of sales, general and administrative expenses of \$781.5 million were down 6% from \$834.7 million in the prior year. On a consolidated basis, direct cost of sales decreased 1%, while both employee costs and other general and administrative costs decreased 12% from the prior year. The decrease in direct cost of sales was driven by decreases in amortization of program rights and other cost of sales, offset by increases in amortization of film investments. The decrease in employee costs was primarily due to estimated CEWS funding, and decreases in share-based compensation expense, commissions and short-term incentive accruals. Other general and administrative expenses decreased principally from lower discretionary costs, rent costs, tariff royalties, trade mark and transmission fees, partially offset by higher estimated credit losses, consulting fees, and incremental COVID-19 costs. Further analysis of expenses is provided in the discussion of segmented results.

SEGMENT PROFIT

Consolidated segment profit for the third quarter of fiscal 2020 was \$111.3 million, which was down 35% from \$170.5 million in the prior year. Segment profit margin for the third quarter of fiscal 2020 was 32%, a decrease from 37% in the prior year.

For the nine months ended May 31, 2020, consolidated segment profit was \$411.3 million, which was down 13% from \$475.3 million in the prior year. Segment profit margin of 34% for the nine months ended May 31, 2020 was down from 36% in the prior year. Further analysis is provided in the discussion of segmented results.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

Depreciation and amortization expense for the three months ended May 31, 2020 was \$39.5 million an increase from \$35.9 million in the prior year. The increase in the quarter was a result of increases in amortization of capital assets of \$3.4 million principally from the implementation of IFRS 16 and increased amortization of brands of \$0.2 million.



Depreciation and amortization expense for the nine months ended May 31, 2020 was \$119.8 a decrease from \$145.0 million in the prior year. Year-to-date decreases resulted from decreases in amortization of brands of \$33.0 million and other intangible assets of \$1.1 million, offset by increases in amortization of capital assets of \$8.8 million, principally from the implementation of IFRS 16. Amortization of brands has decreased significantly from the prior year as a result of accelerated amortization related to a change in estimate in fiscal 2019 of the useful life of the Action brand that was retired in April 2019.

INTEREST EXPENSE

Interest expense for the three months ended May 31, 2020 was \$29.4 million, up from \$28.2 million in the prior year. The increase results primarily from higher imputed interest of \$3.2 million on long-term liabilities associated with program rights, trade marks and right-of-use assets, as well as \$0.2 million lower amortization of a deferred gain from other comprehensive income on interest rate swaps settled on November 28, 2017, partially offset by lower interest on bank debt of \$2.5 million. The reduction in interest on bank debt is due to lower debt levels.

Interest expense for the nine months ended May 31, 2020 was \$88.0 million, down from \$91.4 million in the prior year. The decrease results from lower interest on bank debt of \$12.2 million, partially offset by higher imputed interest of \$7.8 million on long-term liabilities associated with program rights, trade marks and right-of-use assets, as well as \$1.5 million lower amortization of a deferred gain from other comprehensive income on interest rate swaps settled on November 28, 2017. Interest on bank debt is lower due to lower debt levels.

The effective interest rate on bank loans for both the three and nine months ended May 31, 2020 was 4.1% compared to 4.1% and 4.4%, respectively, in the comparable periods in the prior year. The decrease in the effective rate for fiscal 2020 is due to a lower interest rate margin resulting from reduced leverage.

BROADCAST LICENSES AND GOODWILL IMPAIRMENT

Broadcast licenses and goodwill are tested for impairment annually as at August 31 or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they may be impaired. In the third quarter of fiscal 2020, management identified indicators of impairment at the enterprise level, notably a significant decline in the Company's share price from August 31, 2019, which resulted in the Company's carrying value being significantly greater than its current market enterprise value. Accordingly, interim goodwill impairment testing was required for both the Television and Radio cash generating units ("CGUs"). As a result of these tests, the Company recorded non-cash goodwill impairment charges of \$673.0 million and \$46.0 million in the Television and Radio operating segments, respectively, in the third quarter of fiscal 2020.

In addition, the pervasive economic impact of COVID-19 on Radio revenues meant that certain Radio markets had actual results and revised financial projections that fell well short of previous estimates, indicating that interim broadcast license impairment testing was also required. As a result of these tests, the Company recorded non-cash broadcast license impairment charges of \$67.8 million in the Radio segment in the third quarter of fiscal 2020.

GAIN ON DEBT MODIFICATION

The gain on debt refinancing of \$3.9 million for the three and nine months ended May 31, 2019 relates to the amendment of the Company's long-term credit facility agreements on May 31, 2019 (refer to note 8 of the interim condensed consolidated financial statements for further details).

INTEGRATION, RESTRUCTURING AND OTHER COSTS

For the three and nine months ended May 31, 2020, the Company incurred \$2.6 million and \$15.2 million, respectively, of integration, restructuring and other costs, compared to \$2.3 million and \$19.5 million in the comparable periods in the prior year. The current fiscal year costs relate to restructuring costs associated with employee exits, as well as certain costs associated with the shut-down of the FYI channel, continued transmitter decommissioning costs and system integration costs. The prior year costs relate to restructuring costs associated with employee exits, as well as onerous lease provision costs for office space vacated in Vancouver, additional asset retirement obligations for the former Shaw Media headquarters in Toronto, costs associated with the rebranding of the Action channel to the Adult Swim channel, and costs to decommission certain transmitter sites. These charges are excluded from the determination of segment profit.



OTHER EXPENSE, NET

Other expense for the three month period ended May 31, 2020 was \$10.3 million, compared to \$4.2 million in the prior year. The increase in the quarter reflects an increase in the foreign exchange loss of \$7.6 million primarily reflecting translation of USD denominated payables, offset by rent income of \$0.5 million.

Other expense for the nine months ended May 31, 2020 was \$13.6 million compared to \$11.9 million in the prior year. In the current year, other expense includes foreign exchange losses of \$16.1 million, offset by income of \$2.4 million from rental income and miscellaneous interest income. In the prior year, other expense includes an impairment charge related to an investment in an associate of \$8.7 million, equity losses from associates of \$0.9 million, and a net foreign exchange loss of \$3.1 million, offset by income of \$0.9 million from insurance proceeds and miscellaneous interest income.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (RECOVERY)

The Company's effective income tax rates for the three and nine months ended May 31, 2020 was a recovery of 1.2% and expense of 4.8%, respectively. The significant difference between the statutory rates and effective tax rates result from the impairment recorded on goodwill in the television and radio operating segments in the third quarter. The effective income tax rates for the three and nine months ended May 31, 2019 were 29.1% and 28.0%, respectively. The difference between the statutory rates and the effective tax rates for the quarter ended May 31, 2019 resulted primarily from the Company's disposition of its interest in TLN.

NET INCOME (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS AND EARNINGS (IOSS) PER SHARE

Net loss attributable to shareholders for the third quarter of fiscal 2020 was \$752.3 million (\$3.61 loss per share basic), as compared to net income attributable to shareholders of \$66.4 million (\$0.31 per share basic) in the prior year. Net loss attributable to shareholders for the third quarter of fiscal 2020 includes a broadcast license and goodwill impairment of \$786.8 million (\$3.69 per share) and integration, restructuring and other costs of \$2.6 million (\$0.01 per share). Adjusting for the impact of these items results in an adjusted net income attributable to shareholders of \$19.0 million (\$0.09 per share basic) in the quarter. Net income attributable to shareholders for the third quarter of fiscal 2019 includes integration, restructuring and other costs of \$2.3 million (\$0.01 per share), a gain on debt modification of \$3.9 million (\$0.01 per share) and a loss on disposal of TLN of \$0.03 million (\$nil per share). Adjusting for the impact of these items results in an adjusted net income attributable to shareholders of \$66.1 million (\$0.31 per share basic) in the prior year quarter.

Net loss attributable to shareholders for the nine months ended May 31, 2020 was \$655.6 million (\$3.12 loss per share basic), as compared to net income attributable to shareholders of \$133.1 million (\$0.63 per share basic) in the prior year. Net loss attributable to shareholders for year-to-date fiscal 2020 includes a broadcast license and goodwill impairment of \$786.8 million (\$3.66 per share) and integration, restructuring and other costs of \$15.2 million (\$0.05 per share). Adjusting for the impact of these items results in an adjusted net income attributable to shareholders of \$124.9 million (\$0.59 per share basic) for the current fiscal year. Net income attributable to shareholders for the nine months ended May 31, 2019 includes integration, restructuring and other costs of \$19.5 million (\$0.07 per share), an impairment on an investment in associates of \$8.7 million (\$0.03 per share), a gain on debt modification of \$3.9 million (\$0.01 per share), and a loss on the disposition of TLN of \$0.3 million (\$nil per share). Adjusting for the impact of these items results in an adjusted net income attributable to shareholders of \$153.1 million (\$0.72 per share basic) for the prior year period.

The weighted average number of basic shares outstanding for the three and nine months ended May 31, 2020 was 208,663,000 and 210,239,000, respectively, compared to 211,997,000 for both the comparable periods in the prior year. The average number of shares outstanding in the current year decreased as a result of the purchase and cancellation of Class B Non-Voting Participating Shares under the Company's normal course issuer bid ("NCIB"), which commenced on November 12, 2019.

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS), NET OF INCOME TAX

Other comprehensive income for the three months ended May 31, 2020 was \$1.3 million, compared to a loss of \$24.0 million in the prior year. For the three months ended May 31, 2020, other comprehensive income includes an actuarial gain on the remeasurement of post-employment benefit plans of \$21.8 million and an unrealized gain from foreign currency translation adjustments of \$0.7 million, offset by an unrealized loss on the fair value of cash flow hedges of \$13.7 million, and an unrealized loss from the change in fair value of financial assets of \$7.5 million. In the prior year, other comprehensive loss includes an unrealized loss on the fair value of cash flow hedges of \$12.9 million, an actuarial loss on the remeasurement of post-employment benefit plans of \$9.8 million, an unrealized loss from the change in fair value of financial assets of \$1.7 million, offset by an unrealized gain from foreign currency translation adjustments of \$0.4 million.



Other comprehensive loss for the nine months ended May 31, 2020 was \$3.9 million, compared to \$39.7 million in the prior year. For the nine months ended May 31, 2020, other comprehensive loss includes an unrealized loss on the fair value of cash flow hedges of \$17.9 million and an unrealized loss on the fair value of financial assets of \$0.9 million, offset by an actuarial gain on the remeasurement of post-employment benefit plans of \$14.0 million and an unrealized gain from foreign currency translation adjustments of \$0.8 million. The prior year other comprehensive loss includes an unrealized loss on the fair value of cash flow hedges of \$27.7 million, an actuarial loss on the remeasurement of post-employment benefit plans of \$10.9 million, and an unrealized loss on the fair value of financial assets of \$1.6 million, offset by an unrealized gain from foreign currency translation adjustments of \$0.5 million.

TELEVISION

The Television segment is comprised of 34 specialty television services (35 services prior to December 31, 2019; 37 services prior to September 30, 2019; 44 services prior to March 22, 2019), 15 conventional television stations, digital assets, a social media digital agency, a social media creator network, and the Corus content business, which includes the production and distribution of films and television programs, merchandise licensing, book publishing, animation software, and technology and media services.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

	Three m	nonths ended	Nine m	onths ended
		May 31,		May 31,
(thousands of Canadian dollars)	2020	2019	2020	2019
Revenues				
Advertising	191,437	279,393	676,883	772,708
Subscriber fees	121,500	121,096	368,919	373,419
Merchandising, distribution and other	18,385	20,992	63,314	55,010
Total revenues	331,322	421,481	1,109,116	1,201,137
Expenses	215,484	254,831	699,188	736,225
Segment profit (1)	115,838	166,650	409,928	464,912
Segment profit margin ⁽¹⁾	35%	40%	37%	39%

⁽¹⁾ As defined in the "Key Performance Indicators" section

Revenues in the third quarter of fiscal 2020 decreased 21% from the prior year as a result of a decline of 31% in advertising revenues and 12% in merchandising, distribution and other revenues, while subscriber revenues were flat. The decrease in advertising revenues was attributable to the onset of COVID-19 restrictions, which resulted in a market-wide contraction of demand resulting in outright cancellations or campaign deferrals to the Company's fourth quarter and/or the first quarter of fiscal 2021. Subscriber revenues were buoyed by growth from StackTV available through the Amazon Prime Video app, which offset decreases from the divestiture of TLN and the shut-down of the Cosmo and IFC channels in September 2019, as well as the shut-down of the FYI channel in December 2019. Adjusting for the impact of the TLN disposal, subscriber revenues were up 1% on a proforma basis. The decrease in merchandising, distribution and other revenues of \$2.6 million was primarily driven by a lower number of deliveries on current productions compared to the previous year, which resulted from production activity being temporarily suspended in the quarter as the majority of the Nelvana production studio pivoted to work-from-home, as well as reduced merchandising and publishing revenues from business suspensions resulting from quarantine measures implemented around the world.

Revenues for the nine months ended May 31, 2020 were down 8% from the prior year. Decreases of 12% in advertising revenues and 1% in subscriber revenues were offset by a 15% (\$8.3 million) increase in merchandising, distribution, and other revenues. As noted above, the decline in advertising revenues resulted from demand contraction attributable to COVID-19, subscriber revenues were up 1% on a proforma basis, while merchandising, distribution and other revenues increased primarily as a result of increased deliveries as well as reduced merchandising and publishing revenues.

Expenses in the third quarter of fiscal 2020 were down 15% from the prior year. Direct cost of sales (which includes amortization of program rights and film investments, and other cost of sales) decreased 8% from the prior year, while general and administrative expenses were down 26% from the prior year. The decrease in amortization of program rights was driven by lower amortization on Canadian programming and the shut-down of three specialty services (Cosmo and IFC in September 2019, and FYI in December 2019), offset by higher costs from the renewals of certain U.S. output deals and the Adult Swim channel deal, which commenced in



April 2019. The decrease in film amortization was driven by decreased deliveries on the production slate, while the decrease in other cost of sales was principally a result of decreased direct costs associated with certain sales initiatives. Employee costs decreased primarily due to estimated CEWS funding of \$13.5 million, lower short-term compensation accruals and commission costs. Other general and administrative expenses were lower as a result of curtailed discretionary costs such as travel, entertainment, advertising and marketing, lower transmission costs, reductions in rent expenses resulting from the implementation of IFRS 16 (refer to Impact of new Accounting Policies section of this report for further details), as well as relief on Part 1 CRTC fees, lower variable trade mark fees, and tariff royalties levied under the Copyright Act that are positively correlated with movements in revenues, partially offset by increases for estimated credit losses.

Total expenses for the nine months ended May 31, 2020 were down 5% from the prior year as a result of a 1% decrease in direct cost of sales and a 10% decrease in general and administrative expenses. The decrease in direct cost of sales was driven by lower amortization of program rights, partially offset by increased film amortization, while the decrease in general and administrative expenses arises from a 12% decrease in employee costs and an 8% decrease in other general and administrative costs.

Segment profit⁽¹⁾ was down 30% for the third quarter of fiscal 2020 and 12% for the nine months ended May 31, 2020. The decrease in the third quarter and year-to-date was principally as a result of decreases in revenues exceeding decreases in direct cost of sales and general and administrative expenses. Segment profit margin⁽¹⁾ for the quarter was 35% down from the prior year at 40%, while for the nine months ended May 31, 2020 was 37% down from the prior year at 39%.

In the third quarter of Fiscal 2020, the Company recorded a non-cash goodwill impairment of \$673.0 million with respect to the Television segment. The impairment charge resulted from the estimated recoverable amount being lower than the carrying amount. The non-cash goodwill impairment charge is excluded from the determination of segment profit (refer to note 6 of the interim condensed consolidated financial statements for further details).

(1) As defined in the "Key Performance Indicators" section

The Radio segment is comprised of 39 radio stations situated primarily in urban centres in English Canada, with a concentration in the densely populated area of Southern Ontario. Corus is one of Canada's leading radio operators in terms of audience reach.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

	Three months ended		Nine months ended		
		May 31,		May 31,	
(thousands of Canadian dollars)	2020	2019	2020	2019	
Revenues	17,645	36,936	83,724	108,866	
Expenses	19,421	27,168	68,896	81,131	
Segment profit (loss) ⁽¹⁾	(1,776)	9,768	14,828	27,735	
Segment profit margin ⁽¹⁾	-10%	26%	18%	25%	

 $[\]ensuremath{^{\text{(1)}}}\mbox{As defined in the "Key Performance Indicators" section}$

Revenues decreased 52% in the quarter and 23% in the nine months ended May 31, 2020. Advertising revenues were significantly impacted by business shut-downs resulting from quarantine measures implemented by provincial governments across Canada as a result of COVID-19. Despite higher market tuning levels and increases in spring ratings in all large markets, there was a market-wide contraction of demand resulting in outright cancellations or campaign deferrals to the Company's fourth quarter and/or the first quarter of fiscal 2021.

Direct cost of sales and general and administrative expenses were down 29% in the quarter and 15% in the nine months ended May 31, 2020. The decreases were principally from lower employee costs as a result of estimated CEWS funding, decreased rent costs resulting from the implementation of IFRS 16 on September 1, 2019, relief on Part 1 CRTC fees and reductions on tariff royalties levied under the Copyright Act that are positively correlated with movements in revenues, as well as a halt in discretionary spending on advertising and promotions, partially offset by increases for estimated credit losses.



Radio's segment profit⁽¹⁾ declined \$11.5 million in the third quarter of fiscal 2020 and \$12.9 million for the year-to-date. Segment loss margin⁽¹⁾ for the quarter of 10% and segment profit margin of 18% for the nine months ended May 31, 2020 were down from segment profit margins of 26% and 25%, respectively in the prior year comparable periods.

In the third quarter of Fiscal 2020, the Company recorded non-cash impairment charges in broadcast licenses of \$67.8 million and goodwill of \$46.0 million. The impairment charges resulted from the estimated recoverable amounts of five Radio CGUs and the Radio segment CGU to be lower than the carrying amounts. The non-cash broadcast license and goodwill impairment charges are excluded from the determination of segment profit (refer to note 6 of the interim condensed consolidated financial statements for further details).

(1) As defined in the "Key Performance Indicators" section

CORPORATE

The Corporate results are comprised of the incremental cost of corporate overhead in excess of the amount allocated to the operating divisions.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

	Three months ended		Nine n	Nine months ended		
		May 31,		May 31,		
(thousands of Canadian dollars)	2020	2019	2020	2019		
Share-based compensation	172	999	3,052	3,711		
Other general and administrative costs	2,577	4,896	10,367	13,627		
	2,749	5,895	13,419	17,338		

Share-based compensation includes expenses related to the Company's stock options and other long-term incentive plans (such as Performance Share Units - "PSUs", Deferred Share Units - "DSUs", and Restricted Share Units – "RSUs"). The expense fluctuates with changes in assumptions, primarily regarding the Company's share price and number of units estimated to vest.

Share-based compensation decreased in the third quarter by \$0.8 million and \$0.7 million for the nine months ended May 31, 2020. These decreases are due to the decline in the Company's share price, which is partially offset by the change in the fair value of the total return swaps (refer to note 8 to the interim condensed consolidated financial statements for further details on this swap arrangement).

Other general and administrative costs in the three and nine months ended May 31, 2020 decreased 47% and 24%, respectively from the prior year. These decreases are principally related to lower employee costs as a result of estimated CEWS funding, decreased short-term compensation accruals, decreased share-based compensation accruals, decreased rent costs resulting from the implementation of IFRS 16 on September 1, 2019, and lower Directors fees, partially offset by increased COVID-19 related facilities costs as well as consulting and legal costs. All Directors have now elected to receive their fees in DSUs that are revalued at the Company's closing share price at the end of each period.

QUARTERLY CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

SEASONAL FLUCTUATIONS

As discussed in Management's Discussion and Analysis for the year ended August 31, 2019, Corus' operating results are subject to seasonal fluctuations that can significantly impact quarter-to-quarter operating results. The Company's advertising revenues are dependent on general advertising revenues and retail cycles associated with consumer spending activity, accordingly the first and third quarter results tend to be the highest and second and fourth quarter results tend to be the lowest in a fiscal year. The Company's merchandising and distribution revenues are dependent on the number and timing of film and television programs delivered, as well as the timing and level of success achieved of associated merchandise licensed in the market, which cannot be predicted with certainty. Consequently, the Company's results may fluctuate materially from period-to-period and the results of any one period are not necessarily indicative of results for future periods.

The following table sets forth certain unaudited data derived from the Company's interim condensed consolidated financial statements for each of the eight most recent quarters ended May 31, 2020. In Management's opinion, these unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a basis consistent with the audited consolidated financial statements in the Company's Annual Report for the year ended August 31, 2019, except as disclosed in note 3 of the interim condensed consolidated financial statements.



Earnings	(loss)) per share	(2)
----------	--------	-------------	-----

						_				
	Revenues	Segment profit (1)(2)	Net income (loss) attributable to shareholders (1)	Adjusted net income attributable to shareholders (1)	Basic	D	iluted	A	djusted basic	Free cash flow ⁽²⁾
2020										
3rd quarter	348,967	111,313	(752,280)	18,996	\$ (3.61)	\$	(3.61)	\$	0.09	90,773
2nd quarter	375,995	115,909	18,524	25,900	\$ 0.09	\$	0.09	\$	0.12	65,073
1st quarter	467,878	184,115	78,116	79,980	\$ 0.37	\$	0.37	\$	0.38	53,048
2019										
4th quarter	377,479	109,776	22,947	27,930	\$ 0.11	\$	0.11	\$	0.13	93,554
3rd quarter	458,417	170,523	66,378	66,077	\$ 0.31	\$	0.31	\$	0.31	90,101
2nd quarter	384,115	113,148	6,344	15,733	\$ 0.03	\$	0.03	\$	0.07	83,909
1st quarter	467,471	191,638	60,415	70,111	\$ 0.28	\$	0.28	\$	0.33	42,406
2018										
4th quarter	379,084	114,561	33,675	39,534	\$ 0.16	\$	0.16	\$	0.19	95,966

 $^{^{\}mbox{\tiny (1)}}\mbox{As defined in "Key Performance Indicators".}$

SIGNIFICANT ITEMS CAUSING VARIATIONS IN QUARTERLY RESULTS

- Segment profit and free cash flow in the third quarter of fiscal 2020 were positively impacted by IFRS 16 by approximately \$3.3 million and \$4.1 million, respectively; however, the impact on net income attributable to shareholders was not material. Net loss attributable to shareholders for the third quarter of fiscal 2020 was negatively impacted by non-cash radio broadcast license and goodwill impairment charges of \$786.8 million (\$3.69 per share) and integration, restructuring and other costs of \$2.6 million (\$0.01 per share).
- Segment profit and free cash flow in the second quarter of fiscal 2020 were positively impacted by IFRS 16 by approximately \$3.4 million and \$4.2 million, respectively; however, the impact on net income attributable to shareholders was not material. Net income attributable to shareholders for the second quarter of fiscal 2020 was negatively impacted by integration, restructuring and other costs of \$10.0 million (\$0.03 per share).
- · Segment profit and free cash flow in the first quarter of fiscal 2020 were positively impacted by the implementation of IFRS 16 by approximately \$3.4 million and \$3.9 million, respectively; however, the impact on net income attributable to shareholders was not material. Net income attributable to shareholders for the first quarter of fiscal 2020 was negatively impacted by integration, restructuring and other costs of \$2.5 million (\$0.01 per share).
- Net income attributable to shareholders for the fourth quarter of fiscal 2019 was negatively impacted by additional amortization from a change in estimate for the useful lives of television brand assets of \$16.7 million (\$0.06 per share) and integration, restructuring and other costs of \$6.8 million (\$0.02 per share).
- Net income attributable to shareholders for the third quarter of fiscal 2019 was negatively impacted by additional amortization from a change in estimate for the useful lives of television brand assets of \$16.7 million (\$0.06 per share), integration, restructuring and other costs of \$2.3 million (\$0.01 per share) and a \$0.3 million (\$nil per share) loss on disposal of the Company's 50.5% interest in TLN, offset by a gain on debt modification of \$3.9 million (\$0.01 per share).
- · Net income attributable to shareholders for the second quarter of fiscal 2019 was negatively impacted by additional amortization from a change in estimate for the useful lives of television brand assets of \$34.9 million (\$0.12 per share), integration, restructuring and other costs of \$4.0 million (\$0.01 per share) and an impairment on an investment in an associate of \$8.7 million (\$0.03 per share).
- Net income attributable to shareholders for the first quarter of fiscal 2019 was negatively impacted by additional amortization from a change in estimate for the useful lives of television brand assets of \$34.9 million (\$0.12 per share) and integration, restructuring and other costs of \$13.2 million (\$0.05 per share).
- Net income attributable to shareholders for the fourth quarter of fiscal 2018 was negatively impacted by integration, restructuring and other costs of \$7.7 million (\$0.03 per share).



⁽²⁾ Effective September 1, 2019, the Company adopted IFRS 16. There has been no restatement of prior periods. Refer to Impact of New Accounting Policies section of this report for more information.

FINANCIAL POSITION

Total assets at May 31, 2020 were \$4.2 billion compared to \$4.7 billion at August 31, 2019. The following discussion describes the significant changes in the consolidated statements of financial position since August 31, 2019.

Effective September 1, 2019, the Company adopted the new lease accounting standard IFRS 16 with a modified retrospective application. This method of application does not result in the retrospective adjustment of amounts reported for periods prior to fiscal 2020 as the cumulative effect of the initial application of the new standard was recognized at the date of initial application, September 1, 2019. The most significant effect of the new standard is the lessee's recognition of the initial present value of unavoidable future lease payments as right-of-use lease assets and lease liabilities, including those for most leases that would have previously been accounted for as operating leases. This results in depreciation of right-of-use lease assets and financing costs arising from lease liabilities, rather than as part of general and administrative expenses. The adoption of the new standard has resulted in an increase to property, plant and equipment of approximately \$139.1 million and other long-term liabilities of approximately \$157.8 million as at September 1, 2019. The right-of-use assets have been reduced for accrued rents of \$18.6 million, which arose under IAS 17. However, the implementation of IFRS 16 does not have any impact on lease economics or lease cash flows. Further discussion of the change in accounting policy for leases can be found in the Impact of New Accounting Policies section of this report.

Current assets at May 31, 2020 were \$506.4 million, up \$17.6 million from August 31, 2019.

Cash and cash equivalents decreased by \$2.9 million from August 31, 2019. Refer to the discussion of cash flows in the next section.

Accounts receivable increased \$30.4 million from August 31, 2019, which includes \$19.0 million related to the estimated CEWS funding. The accounts receivable balance is subject to seasonal trends. Typically, the balance is higher at the end of the first and third quarters and lower at the end of the second and fourth quarters as a result of the broadcast advertising revenue seasonality; however this year seasonal trends have been significantly impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic and may not be representative of historical results. The Company carefully monitors the aging and collection performance of its accounts receivable and as collection uncertainties have increased for small to medium sized businesses, the Company has increased its estimated credit losses related to those accounts, which resulted in additional immaterial provisions for collection risk.

Tax credits receivable increased \$14.9 million from August 31, 2019 as a result of accruals relating to film productions exceeding tax credit receipts.

Investments and other assets increased \$19.0 million from August 31, 2019, primarily as a result of certain post employment benefit plans now being in a net asset position, and an increase in unrealized gains related to forward foreign exchange contracts, offset by the unrealized losses related to the fair value remeasurement of the investment in venture funds.

Property, plant and equipment increased \$115.1 million from August 31, 2019 as a result of additions, principally the addition of right-of-use lease assets upon adoption of IFRS 16, exceeding depreciation expense.

Program rights increased \$161.5 million from August 31, 2019, as additions of acquired rights of \$551.5 million were offset by amortization of \$386.2 million and the \$3.8 million write-off of certain program rights related to the FYI channel shut-down which was on December 31, 2019.

Film investments increased \$1.2 million from August 31, 2019, as film additions (net of tax credit accruals) of \$15.6 million were offset by film amortization of \$14.4 million.

Intangibles decreased \$60.7 million from August 31, 2019, primarily as a result of impairment charges recorded on certain Radio broadcast licenses of \$67.8 million, while additions related to trade mark licenses and computer software exceeded amortization of finite life intangibles. Goodwill decreased \$719.0 million as a result of impairment charges related to the Television and Radio segments in the third quarter.

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities increased \$106.4 million from August 31, 2019, principally as a result of higher program rights payable, unremitted sales taxes, trade marks payable, short-term lease liabilities, film production accruals and other accrued liabilities, which include other working capital accruals, offset by decreases to short-term compensation accruals, dividends payable, capital asset purchases, accruals related to third party back-end participations and unearned revenues. Unremitted sales taxes are significantly higher than normal as a result COVID-19 measures implemented by the Canadian government and certain provincial governments to permit payment delays on sales taxes until June 2020.



Provisions, including the long-term portion, at May 31, 2020 were \$16.9 million compared to \$18.0 million at August 31, 2019. The decrease of \$1.1 million from August 31, 2019 is primarily a result of restructuring related payments exceeding additions, offset by additional provisions for asset retirement.

Bank debt, including the current portion, as at May 31, 2020 was \$1,604.2 million compared to \$1,731.7 million as at August 31, 2019. As at May 31, 2020, the \$76.3 million classified as the current portion of bank debt reflects the mandatory repayments in the next 12 months. During the nine months ended May 31, 2020, the Company repaid bank debt of \$130.7 million and amortized \$3.1 million of deferred financing charges.

Other long-term liabilities increased \$293.1 million from August 31, 2019, primarily from increases in lease liabilities related to the implementation of IFRS 16, long-term program rights payable, trade marks payable, and adjustments to the fair value of interest rate swap derivatives, offset by reductions in deferred rent accruals related to the implementation of IFRS 16, long-term portion of tangible benefit obligations, as well as liabilities related to merchandising and other intangible rights.

Share capital decreased by \$14.3 million from August 31, 2019 as a result of 3.6 million shares repurchased under the Normal Course Issuer Bid ("NCIB"). Contributed surplus decreased by \$1.8 million primarily as a result of the repurchases under the NCIB.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

CASH FLOWS

Overall, the Company's cash and cash equivalents position increased by \$21.2 million in the third guarter of fiscal 2020 and decreased by \$2.9 million in the nine months ended May 31, 2020. Free cash flow for the three and nine months ended was \$90.8 million and \$208.9 million, respectively, compared to \$90.1 million and \$216.4 million, in the same comparable periods in the prior year. Free cash flow for the three and nine months ended May 31, 2020, was positively impacted by payment deferrals on Canadian income tax installments of approximately \$20.0 million and federal and provincial sales taxes of approximately \$37.0 million, which is reflected in the net change in non-cash working capital balances related to operations line within operating activities in the consolidated statements of cash flows. A reconciliation of free cash flow to the consolidated statements of cash flows is provided in the Key Performance Indicators section.

Cash flow provided by operating activities for the three and nine months ended May 31, 2020 was \$95.9 million and \$219.1 million, respectively, compared to \$96.8 million and \$228.5 million in the comparable periods in the prior year. The decrease in the current quarter of \$1.0 million arises principally from lower cash flow from operations of \$34.1 million, which includes lower spend on program rights of \$19.1 million, lower net spend on film investments of \$2.3 million, offset by higher cash provided by working capital of \$33.1 million. The decrease in the year-to-date cash provided by operating activities of \$9.4 million arises from lower cash flow from operations of \$56.0 million as the current year includes higher spend in program rights of \$11.1 million and film investments of \$2.8 million, offset by lower cash used in working capital of \$46.5 million.

Cash used in investing activities for the three and nine months ended May 31, 2020 was \$5.8 million and \$12.0 million, respectively compared to \$0.1 million and \$8.7 million in the comparable periods in the prior year. In the current year-to-date, the Company had additions to property, plant, equipment of \$10.1 million, and net cash outflows of \$2.2 million for intangibles, investments and other assets. The prior year-to-date includes additions of property, plant, equipment of \$11.6 million, payment of \$6.0 million for the acquisition of certain KIN Canada assets, and net cash outflows of \$3.7 million for intangibles, investments and other assets, offset by the proceeds from disposal of \$12.5 million for the sale of TLN, net of divested cash and prepaid revenue from certain service arrangements.

Cash used in financing activities in the three and nine months ended May 31, 2020 was \$68.9 million and \$210.0 million, respectively, compared to \$95.2 million and \$245.4 million in the comparable periods in the prior year. In the current year, the Company repaid bank debt of \$130.7 million, paid dividends of \$52.6 million, repurchased shares of \$16.9 million, made payments related to right-of-use leases of \$12.1 million, and made capital lease payments of \$3.2 million, offset by equity funding of a non-controlling interest of \$5.4 million. In the prior year, the Company repaid bank debt of \$190.0 million, paid financing costs of \$3.3 million to amend credit facilities, paid dividends of \$48.8 million and made capital lease payments of \$3.2 million.



LIQUIDITY

The Company's capital management objectives are to maintain financial flexibility in order to pursue its strategy of organic growth combined with strategic acquisitions and to provide returns to its shareholders. The Company defines capital as the aggregate of its shareholders' equity and long-term bank debt, less cash and cash equivalents.

The Company manages its capital structure in accordance with changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust its capital structure, the Company may elect to issue or repay long-term debt, issue shares, repurchase shares through a normal course issuer bid, pay dividends or undertake any other activities as deemed appropriate under the specific circumstances.

The Company monitors capital using several key performance metrics, including: net debt to segment profit ratio and dividend yield. The Company's stated long-term objectives are a leverage target (net debt to segment profit ratio) below 3.0 times and to maintain a dividend yield in excess of 2.5%. In the short term, the Company may permit the long-term leverage range to be exceeded (for long-term investment opportunities), but endeavours to return to the leverage target range as the Company believes that these objectives provide a reasonable framework for providing a return to shareholders and is supportive of maintaining the Company's credit ratings.

As at May 31, 2020, the Company had a net cash balance of \$79.6 million and had available approximately \$300.0 million under the Revolving Facility, all of which could be drawn. The Company was in compliance with all loan covenants. Management believes that cash flow from operations and existing credit facilities will provide the Company with sufficient financial resources to fund its operations for the next 12 months.

For further details on the credit facilities, as amended on May 31, 2019, refer to note 8 of the Company's interim condensed consolidated financial statements.

NET DEBT TO SEGMENT PROFIT

As at May 31, 2020, net debt was \$1,675.9 million, up from \$1,649.2 million at August 31, 2019 as a result of increased debt for lease liabilities of \$151.4 million reduced by repayments of bank debt of \$130.7 million. Net debt to segment profit as at May 31, 2020 was 3.22 times versus 2.82 times as at August 31, 2019. Segment profit for the net debt to segment profit calculation reflects aggregate amounts as reported by the Company for the most recent four quarters; however, does not include the removal from segment profit of operating lease costs prior to September 1, 2019. The increase in net debt and net debt to segment profit reflects increased debt for lease liabilities, but does not include a full twelve months of segment profit under the new lease accounting standard IFRS 16. Further discussion on this is contained in the *Impact of New Accounting Policies* section.

TOTAL CAPITALIZATION

As at May 31, 2020, total capitalization was \$2,570.9 million compared to \$3,391.4 million at August 31, 2019, a decrease of \$820.5 million. The reduction in total capitalization is principally related to the non-cash broadcast license and goodwill impairment charges of \$786.8 million recorded in the third quarter which increased the accumulated deficit, lower bank debt of \$127.6 million, a reduction in share capital as a result of the purchase and cancellation of 3.6 million shares under the NCIB which commenced November 12, 2019, and a decrease in cash of \$2.9 million, offset by an increase in equity attributable to non-controlling interest of \$4.9 million.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The Company has no off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future material effect on its financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources.

CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENTS AND DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

There have been no substantial changes to the Company's contractual obligations reported in its 2019 Annual Management's Discussion and Analysis. A copy of the 2019 Annual Management's Discussion and Analysis, which includes a summary of the Company's contractual commitments, is available on SEDAR at www.sedar. com.



KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

In addition to disclosing results in accordance with IFRS as issued by the IASB, the Company also provides supplementary non-IFRS measures as a method of evaluating the Company's performance. The Company measures the success of its strategies using a number of key performance indicators. These have been outlined in Management's Discussion and Analysis contained in the Annual Report for the year ended August 31, 2019, including a discussion as to their relevance, definitions, calculation methods and underlying assumptions.

Certain key performance indicators are not measurements in accordance with IFRS and should not be considered as an alternative to net income or any other measure of performance under IFRS. The following tables reconcile those key performance indicators that are not in accordance with IFRS measures:

FREE CASH FLOW

Free cash flow is calculated as cash provided by operating activities less cash used in investing activities, as reported in the consolidated statements of cash flows, and then adding back cash used specifically for business combinations and strategic investments and deducting net proceeds from dispositions. Free cash flow is a key metric used by the investing community that measures the Company's ability to repay debt, finance strategic business acquisitions and investments, pay dividends, and repurchase shares. Free cash flow does not have any standardized meaning prescribed by IFRS and is not necessarily comparable to similar measures presented by other companies. Free cash flow should not be considered in isolation or as a substitute for cash flows prepared in accordance with IFRS.

	Three months ended		Nine m	nonths ended
		May 31,		May 31,
(thousands of Canadian dollars)	2020	2019	2020	2019
Cash provided by (used in):				
Operating activities (1)	95,859	96,823	219,074	228,514
Investing activities	(5,789)	(56)	(12,010)	(8,730)
	90,070	96,767	207,064	219,784
Add: cash used in business acquisitions, strategic investments				
and non-controlling interest (2)	703	5,863	1,830	9,161
Deduct: cash provided by business divestiture, net of divested				
cash	_	(12,529)	_	(12,529)
Free cash flow	90,773	90,101	208,894	216,416

⁽¹⁾ Free cash flow for the three and nine months ended May 31, 2020 was impacted by the adoption of IFRS 16, effective September 1, 2019. This has resulted in an increase in free cash flow of approximately \$4.1 million for the quarter and \$12.1 million year-to-date. Further discussion of this can be found in the Impact of New Accounting Policies Section of this report.

ADJUSTED NET INCOME AND ADJUSTED BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

Management uses adjusted net income and adjusted basic earnings per share as a measure of enterprise-wide performance. Adjusted net income and adjusted basic earnings per share are defined as net income and basic earnings per share before items such as: non-recurring gains or losses related to acquisitions and/or dispositions of investments; costs of debt refinancing; non-cash impairment charges; and business acquisition, integration and restructuring costs. Management believes that adjusted net income attributable to shareholders and adjusted basic earnings per share are useful measures that facilitate period-to-period operating comparisons. Adjusted net income attributable to shareholders and adjusted basic earnings per share do not have any standardized meaning prescribed by IFRS and are not necessarily comparable to similar measures presented by other companies. Adjusted net income attributable to shareholders and adjusted basic earnings per share should not be considered in isolation or as a substitute for net income prepared in accordance with IFRS as issued by the IASB.



⁽²⁾ Strategic investments are comprised of investments in venture funds and associated companies.

ADJUSTED NET INCOME AND ADJUSTED BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE RECONCILIATION

	Three months ended		Nine m	Nine months ended		
		May 31,		May 31,		
(thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share amounts)	2020	2019	2020	2019		
Net income (loss) attributable to shareholders	(752,280)	66,378	(655,640)	133,137		
Adjustments, net of income tax:						
Impairment of investment in associates	_	_	_	7,565		
Broadcast licences and goodwill impairment	769,338	_	769,338	_		
Gain on debt modification	_	(2,856)	_	(2,856)		
Loss from disposition of the Telelatino Network	_	814	_	814		
Integration, restructuring and other costs	1,938	1,741	11,178	14,417		
Adjusted net income attributable to shareholders	18,996	66,077	124,876	153,077		
Basic earnings (loss) per share	(\$3.61)	\$0.31	(\$3.12)	\$0.63		
Adjustments, net of income tax:						
Impairment of investment in associates	_	_	_	\$0.03		
Broadcast licences and goodwill impairment	\$3.69	_	\$3.66	_		
Gain on debt modification	_	(\$0.01)	_	(\$0.01)		
Loss from disposition of the Telelatino Network	_	_	_	_		
Integration, restructuring and other costs	\$0.01	\$0.01	\$0.05	\$0.07		
Adjusted basic earnings per share	\$0.09	\$0.31	\$0.59	\$0.72		

NET DEBT AND NET DEBT TO SEGMENT PROFIT

Net debt is calculated as long-term debt less cash and cash equivalents as reported in the consolidated statements of financial position. Net debt to segment profit is calculated as net debt divided by segment profit. Net debt is an important measure as it reflects the principal amount of debt owing by the Company as at a particular date. Net debt to segment profit is an important measure of the Company's liquidity. Net debt and net debt to segment profit do not have any standardized meaning prescribed by IFRS and are not necessarily comparable to similar measures presented by other companies.

	As at May 31,	As at August 31,
(thousands of Canadian dollars)	2020	2019
Total bank loans, net of unamortized financing fees	1,604,150	1,731,745
Lease liabilities	151,399	_
Cash and cash equivalents	(79,632)	(82,568)
Net debt	1,675,917	1,649,177
	As at May 31,	As at August 31,
(thousands of Canadian dollars)	2020	2019
Net debt (numerator)	1,675,917	1,649,177
Segment profit (denominator) (1)	521,113	585,085
Net debt to segment profit	3.22	2.82

⁽¹⁾ Reflects aggregate amounts for the most recent four quarters, as detailed in the table in the "Quarterly Consolidated Financial Information" section. Effective September 1, 2019, the Company adopted IFRS 16. There has been no restatement of segment profit for the quarters prior to adoption. Refer to Impact of New Accounting Policies section of this report for more information.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The significant risks and uncertainties affecting the Company and its business are discussed in the Company's August 31, 2019 Annual Report under the "Risks and Uncertainties" section. The following is an update to the changes in the risks or uncertainties facing the Company since that date.

The Company continues to closely monitor the evolution of the novel coronavirus ("COVID-19") situation. As the COVID-19 pandemic continues to significantly impact the wellbeing of individuals and the Canadian and global economies, the Company has implemented a specific response plan, informed by measures recommended by public health agencies, to continue providing its essential services and support to customers while safequarding



the health and safety of employees. Appropriate business continuity measures have been taken to ensure uninterrupted service of the Company's television, digital and radio operations.

Restrictions have gradually begun to lift in many provinces, allowing the reopening of various sectors and businesses; however, the Company will not rush to return people to their work sites, as it has continued to operate with more than 70% of its workforce working remotely. The Company has adopted an "ease back" approach to ensure that the health of its people and the communities they work in are protected. Development of company-wide principles and quidelines, informed by public health authorities' recommendations, and site-specific plans are being made to set out the appropriate pace and timing for each region and workplace to return-to-work gradually and safely over the next few months. Site-specific plans may include reduced occupancy at some sites, or modification of workspaces to provide the right level of protection to the Company's employees.

The Company continues to update employees on a regular basis to provide information on the situation and on the continuing necessary precautions to be taken.

The impact of COVID-19 and measures to prevent its spread have affected the Company in a number of ways; Most significantly, advertising sales were materially impacted by business shut-downs as a result of quarantine measures implemented by provincial governments across Canada, which resulted in decreases in consolidated revenues of more than 30% in the months of April and May compared to the prior year. There has been a market-wide contraction of advertising demand resulting in outright cancellations or deferrals of campaigns until the Company's fourth quarter and/or the first quarter of fiscal 2021 as the Company has been working closely with its advertisers and agencies to create relevant and innovative marketing and advertising opportunities. This has resulted in a decrease in consolidated advertising revenues of 34% for the three months ended May 31, 2020 compared to the prior year. Merchandising, distribution and other revenues have also been negatively impacted in the quarter with a 15% decline from the prior year. Decreases in distribution revenues arose from a temporary suspension of production activities in the Company's Nelvana studio as it pivoted to a work-from-home model. Decreases in merchandising and publishing revenues resulted principally from the closure of many retail locations resulting from quarantine measures implemented around the world.

The government imposed restrictions and closure of many businesses has increased accounts receivable collection uncertainty for small to medium size businesses and as a result, the Company has increased its estimated credit losses related to those accounts, which resulted in small additional provisions for collections

In addition, there have been disruptions in the production and availability of content, including suspension of production of most film and television content. This has led to a larger number of repeats on all networks and has resulted in lower programming costs. For Canadian original programming, the Company continues to work with industry groups to safely restart Canadian productions successfully and to manage incremental costs associated with enhanced COVID-19 precautions. Scarcity of producers, cast, crew, and studio space, together with the costs of personal protective equipment and insurance, are currently estimated to increase the cost of productions by up to 15% until a vaccine for COVID-19 is widely available.

The shut-down of Canadian productions has also meant that the Company's ability to meet its current year regulatory requirements on Canadian programming expenditure ("CPE") has been significantly hampered. Further, the Company anticipates substantial challenges in meeting these requirements in fiscal 2021 and possibly in fiscal 2022 if the Company's Canadian production partners do not substantially return to pre-COVID production levels across Canada before August 31, 2020 or if they are shut-down again as a result of a second wave of COVID-19. Corus is currently assessing its obligations and the potential implications of not fulfilling its CRTC obligations in light of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic. The Company is exploring relief in respect of its CRTC obligations and is encouraged that a resolution to this issue will be achieved either through industry consultation with the CRTC given the impact of the COVID-19 environment on all Canadian broadcasters or through direct discussion with the Commission. The CRTC has stated that, "Canadians rely on radio and television to stay up to date on matters related to COVID-19. The government knows that our Canadian broadcasters have been working around the clock to deliver news and information programming, while facing operational challenges and significant declines in advertising revenue." The CRTC has already provided relief to broadcasters on Part 1 fees from April 2020 through to March 2021, which has reduced the Company's payments with respect to these fees by approximately \$0.4 million in the quarter ended May 31, 2020 and will reduce payments by approximately \$0.5 million in the fourth quarter and \$1.8 million in fiscal 2021.

The Company has determined it is eligible and is making an application for the Government of Canada Canadian Emergency Wage Subsidy ("CEWS") for the April 11 to May 9 and May 10 to June 6 periods. The estimated CEWS of approximately \$19.0 million for the three months ended May 31, 2020 has been recorded principally



as a reduction of employee costs in the interim condensed consolidated financial statements. The Company has also availed itself of payment deferrals on Canadian income tax installments of approximately \$20.0 million and sales taxes of approximately \$37.0 million in order to preserve cash. In addition to government programs, the Company has also initiated other operating expense saving measures to safeguard our financial position and preserve cash which include: agreement from the Board of Directors to receive Deferred Share Units in lieu of cash Directors' fees; pausing the buying back of shares under the Company's normal course issuer bid; scaling back capital investments for the current year; suspending new non-critical employee hiring; suspending travel and non-critical spending; and continuing to evaluate and apply for other government programs where applicable.

It is too soon to gauge the medium to long-term impacts of the current outbreak, given the many unknowns related to COVID-19. These include the duration, severity and possible resurgence of the outbreak as emergency measures are eased. COVID-19 is altering business and consumer activity in many ways. The global response to the COVID-19 pandemic has resulted in, among other things, border closures, severe travel restrictions, the temporary shut-down of non-essential services and extreme fluctuations in financial and commodity markets. Restrictive measures may be re-implemented by one or more governments in jurisdictions where the Company operates. Labour shortages due to illness, Company or government imposed isolation programs, or restrictions on the movement of personnel or possible supply chain disruptions could result in a reduction or cessation of all or a portion of the Company's operations. The extent to which COVID-19 and any other pandemic or public health crisis impacts the Company's business, affairs, operations, financial condition, liquidity, availability of credit and results of operations will depend on future developments that are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted with any meaningful precision, including new information which may emerge concerning the severity of the COVID-19 virus and the actions required to continue to contain the COVID-19 virus or remedy its impact, among others.

The actual and threatened spread of COVID-19 globally could also have a material adverse effect on the regional economies in which we operate, could continue to negatively impact stock markets, including the trading price of our Class B Non-Voting Shares, could adversely impact our ability to raise capital, could cause continued interest rate volatility and movements that could make obtaining financing or renegotiating the terms of our existing financing more challenging or more expensive. Potential impacts include, but are not limited to, an impairment of long-lived assets, an impairment of investments in venture funds and a change in the estimated credit loss on accounts receivable.

Any of these developments, and others, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, operations and results of operations. In addition, because of the severity and global nature of the COVID-19 pandemic, it is possible that estimates in the Company's financial statements will change in the near term and the effect of any such changes could be material, which could result in, among other things, an impairment of long-lived assets, impairments of investments in venture funds and a change in the estimated credit losses on accounts receivable.

The Company's financial priorities remain unchanged. Importantly the Company remains committed to increasing its financial flexibility over the longer term. In this environment, however, the Company believes it is prudent to conserve cash out of an abundance of caution. The Company is constantly evaluating the situation and monitoring any impacts or potential impacts to its business.

IMPACT OF NEW ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The IASB continues to issue new and revised IFRS. A listing of the recent accounting pronouncements promulgated by the IASB and not yet adopted by the Company is included in note 3 in the Company's May 31, 2020 interim condensed consolidated financial statements.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS ADOPTED IN FISCAL 2020

The Company has adopted new amendments to the following accounting standards effective for its interim and $annual consolidated financial statements commencing September 1, 2019. \ The effects of these pronouncements$ on the Company's results and operations are described below.

IFRS 16 — Leases ("IFRS 16")

 $Effective \, September \, 1, 2019, the \, Company \, adopted \, IFRS \, 16, which \, supersedes \, previous \, accounting \, standards \, accounting \, stan$ for leases, including International Accounting Standard 17 - Leases ("IAS 17)") and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee 4 - Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease ("IFRIC 4"). The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for most leases under a single on-balance sheet model. The new standard



eliminates the distinction between operating and finance leases. For all lease arrangements, the lessee must recognize a right-of-use lease asset and a corresponding lease liability on the statement of financial position, including those for most leases that would previously have been accounted for as operating leases. Both leases with durations of 12 months or less and leases for low-value assets may be exempted.

The measurement of the total lease expense over the term of a lease is not affected by the new standard. The presentation on the statement of income and other comprehensive income required by the new standard will result in most non-executory lease expenses being recognized as depreciation of right-of-use lease assets and financing costs arising from lease liabilities, rather than as part of general and administrative expenses (executory lease expenses will remain a part of general and administrative costs). The new standard results in an acceleration of the timing of lease expense recognition for leases that would previously have been accounted for as operating leases.

Relative to the results of applying the previous standard, total cash flows are unaffected, however, the lessee's statement of cash flows will reflect increases in cash flows from operating activities offset equally by decreases in cash flows from financing activities. This is the result of the presentation of the payments of leases, which were previously accounted for as operating leases, as a cash flow use within financing activities under the new standard.

The Company has adopted IFRS 16 on a modified retrospective basis, subject to permitted and elected practical expedients. Comparative information has not been restated and continues to be reported under IAS 17.

When applying IFRS 16, the Company has applied the following practical expedients:

- maintained the Company's lease assessments made under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 for existing contracts;
- applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics;
- excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-use assets as at September 1, 2019;
- used hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains purchase, extension or termination options; and
- relied upon the Company's assessment of whether leases are onerous under the requirements of IAS 37— Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets as at August 31, 2019 as an alternative to reviewing the Company's right-of-use assets for impairment.

On transition, the Company has elected the recognition exemptions on short-term leases, with lease terms less than 12 months, or low-value leases; however, the Company may choose to not elect the recognition exemptions on a class-by-class basis for new classes, and lease-by-lease basis, respectively in the future.

There was no significant impact for contracts in which the Company is the lessor.

Upon adoption of IFRS 16, the Company recognized right-of-use lease assets within property, plant and equipment of \$139.1 million and lease liabilities within other long-term liabilities of \$157.8 million. The right-of-use assets have been reduced for accrued rents of \$18.6 million, which arose under IAS 17. For leases that were classified as operating leases under IAS 17, lease liabilities at transition have been measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments discounted at the related incremental borrowing rate as at September 1, 2019. The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied was 4.7%. The right-of-use asset at transition has been measured at an amount equal to the lease liabilities less previously accrued rent relating to the leases.

IFRIC 23 – Uncertainty over income tax treatments ("IFRIC 23")

Effective September 1, 2019, the Company adopted IFRIC 23, which clarifies how to apply the recognition and measurement requirements of IAS 12 - Income Taxes for taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates to determine current or deferred tax asset or liability when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments. There was no impact to the unaudited consolidated interim financial statements as a result of adopting this standard.

CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

There were no changes in the Company's internal control over financial reporting that occurred in the third quarter ended May 31, 2020 that have materially affected, or are likely to materially affect, the Company's internal controls over financial reporting.



CORUS ENTERTAINMENT INC. **CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION**

	As at May 31,	As at August 31,
(unaudited - in thousands of Canadian dollars)	2020	2019
ASSETS		
Current		
Cash and cash equivalents	79,632	82,568
Accounts receivable	403,213	372,828
Income taxes recoverable	_	13,772
Prepaid expenses and other assets	23,525	19,557
Total current assets	506,370	488,725
Tax credits receivable	39,890	25,035
Investments and other assets	70,745	51,707
Property, plant and equipment (note 3)	341,061	225,927
Program rights	669,403	507,913
Film investments	54,546	53,336
Intangibles (notes 4 and 6)	1,815,577	1,876,235
Goodwill (notes 5 and 6)	664,958	1,383,958
Deferred income tax assets	63,217	59,463
	4,225,767	4,672,299
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY		
Current		
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities	535,836	429,483
Current portion of bank debt (note 8)	76,339	76,339
Provisions (note 7)	7,760	10,331
Income taxes payable	3,738	_
Total current liabilities	623,673	516,153
Bank debt (note 8)	1,527,811	1,655,406
Other long-term liabilities (note 3)	571,207	278,117
Provisions (note 7)	9,168	7,686
Deferred income tax liabilities	447,548	472,700
Total liabilities	3,179,407	2,930,062
EQUITY		
Share capital (note 9)	816,189	830,477
Contributed surplus	1,511,065	1,512,818
Accumulated deficit	(1,425,549)	(758,757)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (deficit)	(5,743)	12,187
Total equity attributable to shareholders	895,962	1,596,725
Equity attributable to non-controlling interest	150,398	145,512
Total equity	1,046,360	1,742,237
	4,225,767	4,672,299



CORUS ENTERTAINMENT INC. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (LOSS) AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

	Three months ended		Nine months ende		
		May 31,		May 31,	
(unaudited - in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share amounts)	2020	2019	2020	2019	
Revenues	348,967	458,417	1,192,840	1,310,003	
Direct cost of sales, general and administrative					
expenses (note 10)	237,654	287,894	781,503	834,694	
Depreciation and amortization (note 3)	39,485	35,899	119,751	145,028	
Interest expense (note 11)	29,378	28,220	87,984	91,405	
Broadcast licenses and goodwill impairment (note 6)	786,790	_	786,790		
Gain on debt modification (note 8)	_	(3,889)	_	(3,889)	
Integration, restructuring and other costs (note 7)	2,636	2,309	15,194	19,537	
Other expense, net (note 12)	10,251	4,171	13,636	11,929	
Income (loss) before income taxes	(757,227)	103,813	(612,018)	211,299	
Income tax expense (recovery) (note 13)	(8,947)	30,168	29,479	59,158	
Net income (loss) for the period	(748,280)	73,645	(641,497)	152,141	
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of income taxes:					
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to income (loss):					
Unrealized change in fair value of cash flow hedges	(13,663)	(12,905)	(17,871)	(27,651)	
Unrealized foreign currency translation adjustment	656	395	834	515	
	(13,007)	(12,510)	(17,037)	(27,136)	
Items that will not be reclassified to income (loss):					
Unrealized change in fair value of financial assets	(7,458)	(1,735)	(893)	(1,639)	
Actuarial gain (loss) on post-retirement benefit plans	21,750	(9,766)	14,035	(10,942)	
	14,292	(11,501)	13,142	(12,581)	
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of income taxes	1,285	(24,011)	(3,895)	(39,717)	
Comprehensive income (loss) for the period	(746,995)	49,634	(645,392)	112,424	
	. , .	· ·			
Net income (loss) attributable to:					
Shareholders	(752,280)	66,378	(655,640)	133,137	
Non-controlling interest	4,000	7,267	14,143	19,004	
	(748,280)	73,645	(641,497)	152,141	
	, ,	· ·		<u> </u>	
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to:					
Shareholders	(750,995)	42,367	(659,535)	93,420	
Non-controlling interest	4,000	7,267	14,143	19,004	
	(746,995)	49,634	(645,392)	112,424	
	,,	-,	,		
Earnings (loss) per share attributable to shareholders:					
Basic	\$(3.61)	\$0.31	(\$3.12)	\$0.63	
Diluted	\$(3.61)	\$0.31	(\$3.12)	\$0.63	
See accompanying notes					



CORUS ENTERTAINMENT INC. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

				Accumulated			
				other	Total equity		
	Share	Contributed	Accumulated	comprehensive	attributable to N	on-controlling	
(unaudited - in thousands of Canadian dollars)	capital	surplus	deficit	income (loss)	shareholders	interest	Total equity
As at August 31, 2019	830,477	1,512,818	(758,757)	12,187	1,596,725	145,512	1,742,237
Comprehensive income (loss)	_	_	(655,640)	(3,895)	(659,535)	14,143	(645,392)
Dividends declared	_	_	(25,187)	_	(25,187)	(14,668)	(39,855)
Share repurchase under normal course issuer bid ("NCIB")							
(note 9)	(14,288)	(2,605)	_	_	(16,893)	_	(16,893)
Actuarial gain on post-retirement benefit plans	_	_	14,035	(14,035)	_	_	_
Share-based compensation expense	_	852	_	_	852	_	852
Equity funding	_			_		5,411	5,411
As at May 31, 2020	816,189	1,511,065	(1,425,549)	(5,743)	895,962	150,398	1,046,360

				Accumulated other	Total equity		
	Share	Contributed	Accumulated	comprehensive	. ,	Non-controlling	
(unaudited - in thousands of Canadian dollars)	capital	surplus	deficit	income (loss)	shareholders	interest	Total equity
As at August 31, 2018, as previously presented	2,330,477	12,119	(856,668)	36,460	1,522,388	154,415	1,676,803
IFRS 9 transitional adjustment		_	_	9,396	9,396	_	9,396
IFRS 15 transitional adjustment	_	_	1,985	_	1,985	_	1,985
Adjusted balance as at September 1, 2018	2,330,477	12,119	(854,683)	45,856	1,533,769	154,415	1,688,184
Comprehensive income (loss)	_	_	133,137	(39,717	93,420	19,004	112,424
Dividends declared	_	_	(38,147)	_	(38,147)	(21,409)	(59,556)
Reduction of stated capital	(1,500,000)	1,500,000	_	_	_	_	_
Actuarial loss on post-retirement benefit plans	_	_	(10,942)	10,942	_	_	_
Share-based compensation expense	_	485	_	_	485	_	485
Divestiture of subsidiary with a non-controlling equity interest	_	_	_	_	_	(5,120)	(5,120)
As at May 31, 2019	830,477	1,512,604	(770,635)	17,081	1,589,527	146,890	1,736,417



CORUS ENTERTAINMENT INC. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

	Three mo	onths ended May 31,	Nine mo	nths ended May 31,
(unaudited - in thousands of Canadian dollars)	2020	2019	2020	2019
OPERATING ACTIVITIES				
Net income (loss) for the period	(748,280)	73,645	(641,497)	152,141
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to cash flow from operations:				
Amortization of program rights	130,661	137,002	386,224	394,130
Amortization of film investments	3,333	6,059	14,414	12,444
Depreciation and amortization (note 3)	39,485	35,899	119,751	145,028
Broadcast licenses and goodwill impairment	786,790	-	786,790	_
Deferred income tax expense (recovery)	(21,529)	821	(27,607)	(19,126)
Impairment of investment in associate	_	-	_	8,720
Share-based compensation expense	291	238	852	485
Imputed interest (note 11)	13,564	10,325	39,802	31,990
Gain on debt modification (note 8)	_	(3,889)	_	(3,889)
Payment of program rights	(138,195)	(157,264)	(405,196)	(394,068)
Net spend on film investments	(12,527)	(14,847)	(46,007)	(43,232)
CRTC benefit payments	(312)	(312)	(1,045)	(1,223)
Other	(2,553)	(2,893)	(5,761)	(6,701)
Cash flow from operations	50,728	84,784	220,720	276,699
Net change in non-cash working capital balances related to				
operations	45,131	12,039	(1,646)	(48,185)
Cash provided by operating activities	95,859	96,823	219,074	228,514
INVESTING ACTIVITIES				
Additions to property, plant and equipment	(3,801)	(5,418)	(10,091)	(11,578)
Proceeds from sale of property	249	-	288	_
Business divestiture, net of divested cash	_	12,529	_	12,529
Business acquisition	_	(6,011)	_	(6,011)
Net cash flows for intangibles, investments and other assets	(2,237)	(1,156)	(2,207)	(3,670)
Cash used in investing activities	(5,789)	(56)	(12,010)	(8,730)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES				
Decrease in bank loans	(43,691)	(72,425)	(130,660)	(189,973)
Deferred financing costs	_	(3,342)	_	(3,342)
Shares repurchased under NCIB	(3,930)	-	(16,893)	_
Payments of lease liabilities	(4,058)	_	(12,105)	_
Equity funding by a non-controlling interest	_	_	5,411	_
Dividends paid	(12,535)	(12,715)	(37,901)	(25,432)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest	(4,007)	(6,245)	(14,668)	(23,408)
Other	(675)	(469)	(3,184)	(3,209)
Cash used in financing activities	(68,896)	(95,196)	(210,000)	(245,364)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents during the period	21,174	1,571	(2,936)	(25,580)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the period	58,458	67,650	82,568	94,801
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the period	79,632	69,221	79,632	69,221

Supplemental cash flow disclosures (note 15)



May 31, 2020

(in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share information)

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Corus Entertainment Inc. (the "Company" or "Corus") is a diversified Canadian media and content company. The Company is incorporated under the Canada Business Corporations Act and its Class B Non-Voting Shares are listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange (the "TSX") under the symbol CJR.B.

The Company's registered office is at 1500, 850 – 2nd Street SW, Calgary, Alberta, T2P 0R8. The Company's executive office is at Corus Quay, 25 Dockside Drive, Toronto, Ontario, M5A 0B5.

These interim condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and all its subsidiaries and joint ventures. The Company's principal business activities are: the operation of specialty television networks, conventional television stations; the operation of radio stations; and the Corus content business, which consists of the production and distribution of films and television programs, merchandise licensing, book publishing and the production and distribution of animation software.

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These interim condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"), specifically International Accounting Standard ("IAS") 34 - Interim Financial Reporting, as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB"). The accounting policies used in the preparation of these interim condensed consolidated financial statements conform with those in the Company's audited annual consolidated financial statements for the year ended August 31, 2019, except as described in note 3. These interim condensed consolidated financial statements do not include all the information and disclosures required in annual financial statements and, accordingly, should be read in conjunction with the Company's annual consolidated financial statements for the year ended August 31, 2019, which are available at www.sedar.com and on the Company's website at www. corusent.com.

These interim condensed consolidated financial statements of the Company for the three and nine months ended May 31, 2020 were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Company's Board of Directors on June 25, 2020.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The interim condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a cost basis, except for derivative financial instruments and investments in venture funds, which have been measured at fair value. The interim condensed consolidated financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars, which is also the Company's functional currency, and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand, except where otherwise noted. Each entity consolidated by the Company determines its own functional currency based on the primary economic environment in which the entity operates.

The Company continues to closely monitor the evolution of the novel coronavirus ("COVID-19") situation. As the COVID-19 pandemic continues to significantly impact the wellbeing of individuals and the Canadian and global economies, the Company has implemented a specific response plan, informed by measures recommended by public health agencies, to continue providing its essential services and support to customers while safequarding the health and safety of employees. Appropriate business continuity measures have been taken to ensure uninterrupted service of the Company's television, digital and radio operations.

It is too soon to gauge the medium to long-term impacts of the current outbreak, given the many unknowns related to COVID-19. These include the duration, severity and possible resurgence of the outbreak as emergency measures are eased. The extent to which COVID-19 and any other pandemic or public health crisis impacts the Company's business, affairs, operations, financial condition, liquidity, availability of credit and results of operations will depend on future developments that are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted with any meaningful precision, including new information which may emerge concerning the severity of the COVID-19 virus and the actions required to continue to contain the COVID-19 virus or remedy its impact, among others. Any of these developments, and others, could have a material adverse



May 31, 2020

(in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share information)

effect on our business, financial condition, operations and results of operations. In addition, because of the severity and global nature of the COVID-19 pandemic, it is possible that estimates in the Company's financial statements will change in the near term and the effect of any such changes could be material, which could result in, among other things, an impairment of long-lived assets, an impairment of investments in venture funds and a change in the estimated credit losses on accounts receivable. The Company is constantly evaluating the situation and monitoring any impacts or potential impacts to its business.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS ADOPTED IN FISCAL 2020

The Company has adopted new amendments to the following accounting standards effective for its interim and annual consolidated financial statements commencing September 1, 2019.

The effects of these pronouncements on the Company's results and operations are described below:

IFRS 16 – Leases ("IFRS 16")

Effective September 1, 2019, the Company adopted IFRS 16, which supersedes previous accounting standards for leases, including IAS 17 – Leases ("IAS 17") and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee 4 – Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease ("IFRIC 4"). The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for most leases under a single on-balance sheet model. The new standard eliminates the distinction between operating and finance leases. Lessor accounting is substantially unchanged from IAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify leases as either operating or finance leases using similar principles as in IAS 17. Therefore, IFRS 16 did not have an impact for leases where Corus is the lessor.

The Company has adopted IFRS 16 on a modified retrospective basis, subject to permitted and elected practical expedients. Comparative information has not been restated and continues to be reported under İAS 17.

When applying IFRS 16, the Company has applied the following practical expedients:

- maintained the Company's lease assessments made under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 for existing contracts;
- applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics;
- excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-use assets as at September 1, 2019;
- used hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains purchase, extension or termination options; and
- relied upon the Company's assessment of whether leases are onerous under the requirements of IAS 37 – Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets as at August 31, 2019 as an alternative to reviewing the Company's right-of-use assets for impairment.

On transition, the Company has elected the recognition exemptions on short-term leases, with lease terms less than 12 months, or low-value leases; however, the Company may choose to not elect the recognition exemptions on a class-by-class basis for new classes, and lease-by-lease basis, respectively, in the future.

Upon adoption of IFRS 16 on September 1, 2019, the Company recognized right-of-use lease assets within property, plant and equipment of \$139.1 million and lease liabilities within other long-term liabilities of \$157.8 million. The difference between the right-of-use asset and associated liability of \$18.6 million relates to accrued rents, which arose under IAS 17. For leases that were classified as operating leases under IAS 17, lease liabilities at transition have been measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments discounted at the related incremental borrowing rate as at September 1, 2019. The weighted average borrowing rate applied was 4.7%. The right-of-use asset at transition has been measured at an amount equal to the lease liabilities less previously accrued rent relating to the leases.

Set out below is the Company's new accounting policy upon adoption of IFRS 16, which has been applied from the date of initial application.

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease at the inception of the contract. The Company recognizes a lease liability with a corresponding right-of-use asset for all lease agreements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets. The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,



May 31, 2020

(in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share information)

discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing its carrying amount to reflect accretion on the lease liability (using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect lease payments made. The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and the useful life of the underlying asset. The Company applies IAS 36 - Impairment of Assets, to determine whether the asset is impaired and account for any identified impairment loss.

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and do not contain a purchase option or for leases related to low value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and lease of low value assets are recognized as general and administrative expenses in the interim condensed consolidated statements of income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss).

After transition, right-of-use assets are measured at cost, comprised of the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liabilities, lease payments made at or before the commencement date of any initial direct costs. They are subsequently depreciated on a straight-line basis over their expected useful lives and reduced by impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment if indicators of impairment exist

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of the lease liability and the right-of-use asset. The related payments are recognized as an expense in the period in which the event or condition that triggers those payments occurs and are presented as such in the interim condensed consolidated statements of income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss).

Right-of-use assets are included in property, plant and equipment on the interim condensed consolidated statements of financial position. The current portion of lease liabilities are included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities on the interim condensed consolidated statements of financial position, while the long-term portion is included in other long-term liabilities.

IFRIC 23 – Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments ("IFRIC 23")

Effective September 1, 2019, the Company adopted IFRIC 23, which clarifies how to apply the recognition and measurement requirements of IAS 12 – Income Taxes for taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates to determine current or deferred tax asset or liability when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments. There was no impact to the interim condensed consolidated financial statements as a result of adopting this standard.

PENDING ACCOUNTING CHANGES

IFRS 3 – Business Combinations ("IFRS 3")

In October 2018, the IASB amended IFRS 3 seeking to clarify whether an acquisition transaction results in the acquisition of an asset or the acquisition of a business. The amendments are effective for business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after January 1, 2020, although earlier application is permitted. The Company will apply the standard prospectively from September 1, 2020. The effects, if any, of the amended standard on the Company's financial performance and disclosure will be dependent on the facts and circumstances of any future acquisition transactions.



May 31, 2020

(in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share information)

4. INTANGIBLES

		Brands and		
	Broadcast licenses (1)	trade marks	Other (2)	Total
Balance – August 31, 2019	963,773	899,920	12,542	1,876,235
Additions	<u> </u>	83,524	9,279	92,803
Impairments (note 6)	(67,790)	_	_	(67,790)
Amortization	<u> </u>	(78,380)	(7,291)	(85,671)
Balance – May 31, 2020	895,983	905,064	14,530	1,815,577

⁽¹⁾ Broadcast licenses are located in Canada.

5. GOODWILL

Balance - May 31, 2020	664,958
Impairment (note 6)	(719,000)
Balance - August 31, 2019	1,383,958
	Total

Goodwill is located primarily in Canada.

6. IMPAIRMENT TESTING

At each reporting date, the Company is required to assess its indefinite life intangible assets and goodwill for potential indicators of impairment, such as an adverse change in business climate that may indicate that these assets may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset or cash generating unit ("CGU") and compares it to the carrying value. In addition, irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the Company is required to test intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and goodwill for impairment at least annually.

For long-lived assets other than goodwill, the Company is also required to assess, at each reporting date, whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.

The Company completes its annual testing during the fourth quarter of each fiscal year; however, in the third quarter of fiscal 2020, management identified indicators of impairment at the enterprise level, notably a significant decline in the Company's share price from August 31, 2019, which resulted in the Company's carrying value being significantly greater than its current market enterprise value. Accordingly, interim goodwill impairment testing was required for both the Television and Radio group of CGUs. In addition, the pervasive economic impact of COVID-19 on Radio revenues meant that certain Radio markets had actual results and revised financial projections that fell short of previous estimates, indicating that interim broadcast license impairment testing was also required.

The test for impairment of either an intangible asset or goodwill is to compare the estimated recoverable amount of the asset or CGU to the carrying value. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or CGU's fair value less costs to sell ("FVLCS") and its value in use ("VIU"). The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets (such as broadcast licenses and goodwill) and the asset's VIU cannot be determined to equal its FVLCS. If this is the case, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.

For the goodwill and broadcast license impairment tests conducted in the third quarter of fiscal 2020 for the Television and Radio CGUs, the Company has determined the VIU calculation is higher than FVLCS. Therefore, the recoverable amount for all CGUs or groups of CGUs is based on the VIU.

The VIU calculation uses cash flow projections, generally for a five-year period, and a terminal value. The terminal value is the value attributed to the CGU's operations beyond the projected period using a perpetual



⁽²⁾Other intangibles are comprised principally of computer software.

May 31, 2020

(in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share information)

growth rate. The key assumptions in the VIU calculations are segment profit growth rates (for periods within the cash flow projections and in perpetuity for the calculation of the terminal value) and discount rates.

Segment profit growth rates are based on management's best estimates considering historical and expected operating plans, strategic plans, economic considerations and the general outlook for the industry and markets in which the CGU operates. The projections are prepared separately for each of the Company's CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated and are based on the Company's most recent financial projections. The terminal growth rate is based on management's best estimates considering the industry, operating income trends and growth prospects for that specific CGU or group of CGUs.

The discount rate applied to each asset, CGU or group of CGUs to determine VIU is a pre-tax rate that reflects an optimal debt-to-equity ratio and considers the risk-free rate, market equity risk premium, size premium and the risks specific to each asset or CGU's cash flow projections.

In calculating the VIU, the Company uses an appropriate range of discount rates in order to establish a range of values for each CGU or group of CGUs.

The pre-tax discount and growth rates used by the Company for the purpose of its VIU calculations performed for each of the following groups of CGUs in the third quarter of fiscal 2020 were:

	May 31, 2020
Television	
Pre-tax discount rate	12.0% — 13.0%
Earnings growth rate	-16.6% — 8.2%
Terminal growth rate	0.0% — 1.0%
Radio	
Pre-tax discount rate	14.0% — 16.0%
Earnings growth rate	-56.2% — 72.1%
Terminal growth rate	0.0% — 1.0%

As a result of the broadcast license impairment testing in the third quarter of fiscal 2020 of certain Radio CGUs, the Company determined that there were broadcast license impairments in four Radio CGUs in Ontario and two in Alberta. For each of the Radio CGUs, the Company used VIU to determine the recoverable amount, which resulted in an impairment charge of \$67.8 million that reduced the carrying value of broadcast licenses within these CGUs to their recoverable amount.

As a result of the goodwill impairment testing in the third quarter of fiscal 2020, the Company recorded a goodwill impairment charge of \$673.0 million in the Television segment and \$46.0 million in the Radio segment.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

Due to the uncertainty related to COVID-19, the Company has noted there is significant estimation uncertainty related to the Company's growth rates and future cash flow estimates, which could change in the near term and the effect of such changes could be material. An increase of 50 basis points in the pre-tax discount rate, a decrease of 50 basis points in the earnings growth rate each year, or a decrease of 50 basis points in the terminal growth rate, each used in isolation to perform the Radio broadcast license and both the Television and Radio goodwill impairment tests, would have resulted in an additional incremental goodwill impairment charge in the Television operating segment between \$57.0 million and \$105.0 million and an additional incremental goodwill impairment charge in the Radio operating segment between \$1.0 million and \$2.0 million.

The carrying amount of broadcast licenses and goodwill allocated to each CGU and/or group of CGUs are set out in the following tables:



(Unaudited) May 31, 2020

(in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share information)

	May 31, 2020	August 31, 2019
Broadcast licenses (note 4)		-
Television		
Managed brands	852,905	852,905
Radio		
Calgary	_	31,341
Edmonton	_	21,851
Toronto	21,775	21,775
Vancouver	21,303	21,303
Other ⁽¹⁾	_	14,598
	895,983	963,773
	May 31, 2020	August 31, 2019
Goodwill (note 5)		
Television	643,859	1,316,859
Radio	21,099	67,099
	664,958	1,383,958

⁽¹⁾ Broadcast licenses for Other consist of all other Radio CGUs combined. There is no individual Radio CGU that comprises more than 10% of the Company's broadcast license total.

7. PROVISIONS

		Asset retirement		
	Restructuring	obligations	Other	Total
Balance – August 31, 2019	7,754	10,083	180	18,017
Additions	15,194	1,381	_	16,575
Interest	_	165	_	165
Payments	(17,455)	(374)	_	(17,829)
Balance - May 31, 2020	5,493	11,255	180	16,928
Current	4,431	3,149	180	7,760
Long-term	1,062	8,106	_	9,168
	5,493	11,255	180	16,928

In the nine months ended May 31, 2020, the Company recorded restructuring costs of \$15.2 million comprised of employee exits of \$5.0 million, FYI program rights of \$3.8 million, system integration costs of \$6.4 million, and additional asset retirement obligations of \$1.4 million for broadcast tower sites.

8. BANK DEBT

	1,527,811	1,655,406
Less: current portion of bank loans	(76,339)	(76,339)
	1,604,150	1,731,745
Unamortized financing fees	(10,910)	(13,430)
Bank loans	1,615,060	1,745,175
	2020	2019
	May 31,	August 31,



May 31, 2020

(in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share information)

Interest rates on the bank loans fluctuate with Canadian bankers' acceptances and/or LIBOR. As at May 31, 2020, the weighted average interest rate on outstanding bank loans was 3.9% (May 31, 2019 – 4.0%). Interest on the bank loans averaged 4.1% for both the three and nine months ended May 31, 2020 (May 31, 2019 - 4.1% and 4.4%, in the same comparable periods).

The banks hold, as collateral, a first ranking charge on all assets and undertakings of Corus and certain of Corus' subsidiaries as designated under the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated April 1, 2016 (the "Facility") as amended from time-to-time. Under the Facility, the Company has undertaken to comply with financial covenants regarding a minimum interest coverage ratio and a maximum debt to cash flow ratio. Management has determined that the Company was in compliance with the covenants provided under the bank loans as at May 31, 2020.

CREDIT FACILITIES

In connection with the closing of the acquisition of Shaw Media on April 1, 2016, Corus established syndicated senior secured credit facilities in the aggregate amount of \$2.6 billion consisting of \$2.3 billion in term loans (the "Term Facility"), all of which was fully drawn at closing, and a \$300.0 million revolving facility (the "Revolving Facility"), which was not drawn on as part of closing.

Effective November 30, 2017, the Company's credit agreement with a syndicate of banks was amended. The principal amendments effected were the extension of the maturity for the Revolving Facility and the Term Facility, and fixing the mandatory repayment on the Term Facility to 1.25% per quarter effective November 30, 2017.

Effective May 31, 2019, the Company's credit agreement with a syndicate of banks was further amended. The principal amendment effected was the extension of the maturity for the Term Facility and the Revolving Facility. The carrying value of the debt is accreted using the effective interest rate method over the remaining term of the Term Facility with the accretion recognized within Interest expense on the interim condensed consolidated statements of income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss).

Term Facility

As at May 31, 2020, the Term Facility was composed of three tranches, with the first tranche in the amount of \$614.8 million and having a maturity date of May 31, 2024, the second tranche in the amount of \$835.7 million and having a maturity date of May 31, 2023, and the third tranche in the amount of \$178.3 million and having a maturity date of November 30, 2021.

Advances under the Term Facility may be outstanding in the form of either prime loans or bankers' acceptances and bear interest at the applicable reference rate plus an applicable margin depending on the type of advance and Corus' total debt to cash flow ratio.

Voluntary prepayments on the amount outstanding under the Term Facility are permitted at any time without penalty, subject to payment of customary breakage costs, if applicable, and provided that advances in the form of bankers' acceptances may only be paid on their maturity. The first and second tranches of the Term Facility will be subject to mandatory repayment equal to 1.25% per quarter at the end of each fiscal quarter of Corus.

Revolving Facility

The Revolving Facility matures on May 31, 2023. The Revolving Facility is available on a revolving basis to finance permitted acquisitions and capital expenditures and for general corporate purposes. Amounts owing under the Revolving Facility will be payable in full at maturity. The Revolving Facility permits full or partial cancellation of the facility and, if applicable, concurrent prepayment of the amounts drawn thereunder at any time without penalty, subject to payment of customary breakage costs, if applicable, and provided that advances in the form of bankers' acceptances may only be paid on their maturity.

Advances under the Revolving Facility may be drawn in Canadian dollars as either a prime rate loan, bankers' acceptance or Canadian dollar denominated letters of credit (to a sub-limit of \$50.0 million total), or in U.S. dollars as either a base rate loan, U.S. LIBOR loan or U.S. dollar denominated letters of credit (to a sub-limit of \$50.0 million total). Amounts drawn under the Revolving Facility will bear interest at the applicable reference rate plus an applicable margin depending on the type of advance and Corus' total debt to cash flow ratio. A



May 31, 2020

(in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share information)

standby fee will also be payable on the unutilized amount of the Revolving Facility. As at May 31, 2020, all of the Revolving Facility was available and could be drawn.

INTEREST RATE SWAP AGREEMENTS

The Company has entered into Canadian interest rate swap agreements to fix the interest rate on a portion of its outstanding term loan facilities. The notional value of these swaps reduces concurrently with the mandatory repayments of the Term Facility. The current notional value of the interest rate swap agreements are \$923.0 million and \$512.0 million of its outstanding term loan facilities at 1.947% and 2.004%, respectively, plus applicable margins to August 31, 2021 and August 31, 2022. The notional value of these swaps reduces concurrently with the mandatory repayments of the Term Facility. The counterparties of the swap agreements are highly rated financial institutions and the Company does not anticipate any non-performance. The fair value of Level 2 financial instruments such as interest rate swap agreements is calculated by way of discounted cash flows, using market interest rates and applicable credit spreads. The Company has assessed that there is no ineffectiveness in the hedge of its interest rate exposure. As an effective hedge, unrealized gains or losses on the interest rate swap agreements are recognized in other comprehensive income (loss). The estimated fair value of these agreements as at May 31, 2020 was a liability of \$31.1 million (August 31, 2019 – liability of \$11.6 million), which has been recorded in the interim consolidated statements of financial position as a long-term liability. The effectiveness of the hedging relationship is reviewed on a quarterly basis.

TOTAL RETURN SWAPS

On November 29, 2018, the Company initiated total return swap agreements on 1,868,500 share units with a notional value of \$9.2 million to offset its exposure to changes in the fair value of certain cash settled share-based compensation awards. The estimated fair value of these Level 1 financial instruments will fluctuate with the market price of the Company's shares. The counterparties of these swap agreements are highly rated financial institutions and the Company does not anticipate any non-performance. The estimated fair value of these agreements as at May 31, 2020 was a liability of \$3.2 million (August 31, 2019 - asset of \$0.3 million), which has been recorded in the interim condensed consolidated statements of financial position as an other long-term liability and within employee costs in the interim condensed consolidated statements of income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss) (note 10).

FORWARD CONTRACTS

As at May 31, 2020, the Company has a series of forward foreign exchange contracts totalling \$53.4 million USD, to fix the foreign exchange rate and cash flows related to a portion of the Company's USD denominated liabilities. The forward contracts are not designated as hedges for accounting purposes; they are measured at fair value at each reporting date. The counterparty of the forward contracts is a highly rated financial institution and the Company does not anticipate any non-performance. The estimated fair value of future cash flow of the USD forward contract derivatives change with fluctuations in the foreign exchange rate of USD to Canadian dollars. The estimated fair value of these agreements as at May 31, 2020 was an asset of \$7.3 million (August 31, 2019 - asset of \$6.0 million), which has been recorded in the interim condensed consolidated statements of financial position as a long-term other asset and within other expense (income), net (note 12) in the interim condensed consolidated statements of income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss).



CORUS ENTERTAINMENT INC.

NOTES TO INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)

May 31, 2020

(in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share information)

9. SHARE CAPITAL

AUTHORIZED

The Company is authorized to issue, upon approval of holders of no less than two-thirds of the existing Class A shares, an unlimited number of Class A participating shares ("Class A Voting Shares"), as well as an unlimited number of Class B non-voting participating shares ("Class B Non-Voting Shares"), Class A Preferred Shares, and Class 1 and Class 2 Preferred Shares.

	Class A Voting Shares		Non-Vot	Class B ing Shares	Total
	#	\$	#	\$	\$
Balance – August 31, 2019	3,413,192	9,441	208,583,866	821,036	830,477
Conversion of Class A Voting Shares					
to Class B Non-Voting Shares	(800)	(2)	800	2	_
Shares repurchased under NCIB	_	_	(3,630,000)	(14,288)	(14,288)
Balance – May 31, 2020	3,412,392	9,439	204,954,666	806,750	816,189

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

The following is a reconciliation of the numerator and denominator (in thousands) used for the computation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share amounts:

	Three months ended		Nine mon	ths ended	
		May 31,		May 31,	
	2020	2019	2020	2019	
Net income (loss) attributable to shareholders (numerator)	(752,280)	66,378	(655,640)	133,137	
Weighted average number of shares outstanding (denominator	r)				
Weighted average number of shares outstanding – basic	208,663	211,997	210,239	211,997	
Effect of dilutive securities	_	229	_	_	
Weighted average number of shares outstanding – diluted	208,663	212,226	210,239	211,997	

The calculation of diluted earnings (loss) per share for the three and nine months ended May 31, 2020 excluded 6,957 and 6,778, respectively (2019 - 4,956 and 5,377, respectively) weighted average Class B Non-Voting Shares issuable under the Company's Stock Option Plan because these options were not "in-the-money".

DIVIDENDS

On June 9, 2020, the Company declared quarterly dividends of \$0.05875 and \$0.06 per share to holders of its Class A and Class B Shares, respectively.

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

Share-based compensation expense recorded for the third quarter and year-to-date of fiscal 2020 in respect of these plans was \$172 and \$3,052 (2019 - \$999 and \$3,711). As at May 31, 2020, the carrying value of the liability for PSU, DSU and RSU units was \$7,820 (August 31, 2019 - \$10,086).

NORMAL COURSE ISSUER BID ("NCIB")

On November 8, 2019, the Company announced that the TSX had accepted the notice filed by the Company of its intention to make an NCIB for its Class B Non-Voting Participating Shares through the facilities of the TSX, and/or other alternative Canadian trading systems. The Company may purchase for cancellation a maximum of 9,913,940 Class B Non-Voting Participating Shares during the period from November 12, 2019 through November 11, 2020.



May 31, 2020

(in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share information)

The shares purchased and cancelled since November 12, 2019 are as follows:

			Average per share
	#	\$	\$
November 2019	674,600	3,870	5.74
December 2019	1,000,000	5,508	5.51
January 2020	305,400	1,675	5.48
February 2020	500,000	2,338	4.68
March 2020	1,100,000	3,374	3.07
April 2020	50,000	129	2.58
	3,630,000	16,894	4.65

During the first three quarters of fiscal 2020, the total cash consideration paid exceeded the carrying value of the shares repurchased by \$2,605, which was charged to contributed surplus.

10. DIRECT COST OF SALES, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

	Three months ended		Nine months en	
		May 31,		May 31,
	2020	2019	2020	2019
Direct cost of sales				
Amortization of program rights	130,661	137,002	386,224	394,130
Amortization of film investments	3,333	6,059	14,414	12,444
Other cost of sales	4,897	9,125	24,370	24,579
General and administrative expenses				
Employee costs (note 7)	57,726	83,078	214,436	242,592
Other general and administrative	41,037	52,630	142,059	160,949
	237,654	287,894	781,503	834,694

11. INTEREST EXPENSE

	Three months ended		Nine mor	nths ended	
	May 31,			May 31,	
	2020	2019	2020	2019	
Interest on long-term debt (note 8)	16,778	19,251	51,703	63,897	
Imputed interest on long-term liabilities	13,564	10,325	39,802	31,990	
Amortization of deferred gain on settled interest rate swap	(1,570)	(1,769)	(4,881)	(6,349)	
Other	606	413	1,360	1,867	
	29,378	28,220	87,984	91,405	



CORUS ENTERTAINMENT INC.

NOTES TO INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)

May 31, 2020

(in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share information)

12. OTHER EXPENSE, NET

	Three months ended		Nine months ende	
		May 31,		
	2020	2019	2020	2019
Foreign exchange loss	10,716	3,072	16,051	3,142
Equity loss (gain) of associates	(3)	658	(5)	924
Impairment of investment in associate	_	_	_	8,720
Other income (loss) (note 8)	(462)	441	(2,410)	(857)
	10,251	4,171	13,636	11,929

13. INCOME TAXES

The reconciliation of income taxes attributable to operations computed at the statutory rates to income tax expense is as follows:

			Nine mont	hs ended
				May 31,
		2020		2019
	\$	%	\$	%
Income tax at combined federal and provincial rates	(162,595)	26.6%	56,214	26.6%
Loss (income) subject to tax at less than statutory rates	(396)	—%	45	%
Non-deductible (taxable) portion of capital losses (gains)	183	—%	1,739	0.8%
Impact of valuation allowance recorded against future income				
tax assets in the year	(132)	—%	116	0.1%
Goodwill impairment	191,017	(31.2%)	_	%
Transaction costs	(136)	—%	(222)	(0.11%)
Increase of various tax reserves	156	—%	267	0.1%
Miscellaneous differences	1,382	(0.2%)	999	0.5%
	29,479	(4.86%)	59,158	28.0%

14. BUSINESS SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company's business activities are conducted through two segments: Television and Radio.

TELEVISION

The Television segment is comprised of 34 specialty television networks (35 services prior to December 31, 2019; 37 services prior to September 30, 2019; 44 services prior to March 22, 2019), 15 conventional television stations, digital assets, a social media digital agency, a social media creator network, and the Corus content business, which includes the production and distribution of films and television programs, merchandise licensing, book publishing, animation software, and technology and media services. Revenues are generated from advertising, subscribers and the licensing of proprietary films and television programs, merchandise licensing, book publishing, animation software, and technology and media service sales.

The Radio segment comprises 39 radio stations, situated primarily in urban centres in English Canada, with a concentration in the densely populated area of Southern Ontario. Revenues are derived from advertising aired over these stations.

CORPORATE

Corporate results represent the incremental cost of corporate overhead in excess of the amount allocated to the other operating segments.



May 31, 2020

(in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share information)

Management evaluates each division's performance based on revenues less direct cost of sales, general and administrative expenses. Segment profit (loss) excludes depreciation and amortization, interest expense, debt refinancing costs, integration, restructuring and other costs, impairments, gains or losses on dispositions, and certain other income and expenses.

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies of the most recent annual audited consolidated financial statements, except as described in note 3.

REVENUES AND SEGMENT PROFIT (LOSS)

Three months ended May 31, 2020	Television	Radio	Corporate (Consolidated
Revenues	331,322	17,645	_	348,967
Direct cost of sales, general and administrative expenses	215,484	19,421	2,749	237,654
Segment profit (loss)	115,838	(1,776)	(2,749)	111,313
Depreciation and amortization				39,485
Interest expense				29,378
Broadcast licenses and goodwill impairment				786,790
Integration, restructuring and other costs				2,636
Other expense, net				10,251
Loss before income taxes				(757,227)

Three months ended May 31, 2019	Television	Radio	Corporate	Consolidated
Revenues	421,481	36,936	_	458,417
Direct cost of sales, general and administrative expenses	254,831	27,168	5,895	287,894
Segment profit (loss)	166,650	9,768	(5,895)	170,523
Depreciation and amortization				35,899
Interest expense				28,220
Gain on debt modification				(3,889)
Integration, restructuring and other costs				2,309
Other expense, net				4,171
Income before income taxes				103,813

Nine months ended May 31, 2020	Television	Radio	Corporate	Consolidated
Revenues	1,109,116	83,724	_	1,192,840
Direct cost of sales, general and administrative expenses	699,188	68,896	13,419	781,503
Segment profit (loss)	409,928	14,828	(13,419)	411,337
Depreciation and amortization				119,751
Interest expense				87,984
Broadcast licenses and goodwill impairment				786,790
Integration, restructuring and other costs				15,194
Other expense, net				13,636
Loss before income taxes				(612,018)



May 31, 2020

(in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share information)

Nine months ended May 31, 2019	Television	Radio	Corporate	Consolidated
Revenues	1,201,137	108,866	_	1,310,003
Direct cost of sales, general and administrative expenses	736,225	81,131	17,338	834,694
Segment profit (loss)	464,912	27,735	(17,338)	475,309
Depreciation and amortization				145,028
Interest expense				91,405
Gain on debt modification				(3,889)
Integration, restructuring and other costs				19,537
Other expense, net				11,929
Income before income taxes				211,299

Revenues are derived from the following areas:

	Three months ended		Nine mo	onths ended
			May 31,	
	2020	2019	2020	2019
Advertising	207,862	314,162	756,131	875,781
Subscriber fees	121,500	121,096	368,919	373,419
Merchandising, distribution and other	19,605	23,159	67,790	60,803
	348,967	458,417	1,192,840	1,310,003

15. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Interest paid, interest received and income taxes paid and classified as operating activities are as follows:

	Three mon	Three months ended		onths ended
		May 31,		
	2020	2019	2020	2019
Interest paid	17,344	19,203	53,061	65,300
Interest received	194	484	829	1,191
Income taxes paid (recovered)	(4,123)	19,458	34,538	54,697

